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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Annual Results

The Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company and earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2008 (the “Year”) amounted to approximately
HK$196,877,000 (2007: approximately HK$224,385,000)
and HK1.46 cents (2007: HK1.66 cents), respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$5,193,278,000 (2007:
approximately HK$4,644,992,000), representing an increase
of approximately 12% over the same period last year.

Business Review

In 2008, the Group underwent a fundamental change in its
scope of business from the manufacturing of electrical
household appliances to the upstream business of the
manufacture and distribution of motors and electronic and
electric components for electrical household appliances,
following the completion of a business restructuring exercise
which involved a swap of significant assets and businesses
between the Company and its substantial shareholder. We
reported a steadily improved turnover despite severe
economic conditions, as we started our new business in
the manufacturing and distribution of components for
electrical household appliances.

We reported a year-on-year decrease in our aggregate
sales volume in air-conditioning motors as the overall
demand for household air-conditioners was weaker due to
the economic downturn and a slump in the real estate
market. The Group effectively hedged against the risk of
fluctuations in the costs of raw materials by resorting to an
adjustment strategy that linked the price of products to the
costs of raw materials. However, retails turned sluggish in
the latter half of 2008 as consumers’ confidence was dealt
a further blow by the financial crisis. Coupled with a
general correction in the prices of raw materials, this
resulted in lower turnover from our air-conditioning motors
business for the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group continued to record strong growth in its washing
motors business and maintained its leading position in the
industry. The aggressive marketing strategies adopted by
the Group towards major customers proved successful as
increasing orders from major customers contributed to a
considerable year-on-year growth in the aggregate sales
volume of washing motors. Affected by the global economic
downturn, however, there had been a significant drop since
the fourth quarter in export sales, which accounted for a
relatively high proportion of our washing motors business.

Steady growth was reported in the sales of converter
products for microwave ovens in 2008, with increasing
customers’ demand for shaded pole motors. The electronic
and electric components business sustained steady growth
as the Group secured major customers in export and
domestic sales through intense marketing strategies and
extended efforts to support its strategic products such as
variable-frequency transformers for microwave ovens and
resistors.

The financial turmoil that originated in the United States in
September 2008 triggered off a global economic crisis,
leading to a sharp turn of the world economy. Since then,
the world has been under a severely stringent economic
environment rarely seen in the past, as asset prices
plummeted and consumers’ confidence deteriorated amid
volatility in financial markets. China’s economic growth
experienced a slowdown in the wake of the financial crisis.
Similar to companies in all other industries, the Group was
compelled to operate against unfavourable factors and an
adverse business environment resulting from the economic
crisis. Nevertheless, we have implemented a range of
effective measures to address the drastic change in our
business environment, aiming to steer through the crisis in
stability. Our measures have been focused on stringent cost
controls, stronger risk control and management, efficiency
enhancements through technology upgrades, reductions in
raw material consumption, cutbacks in non-essential
expenses, as well as means to improve the Group’s
profitability. The Group reduced its dependence on external
supplies by enhancing its capability to manufacture core
components of motors through the acquisition of
manufacturing plant for washing motors during the Year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Aside from facilitating better control over product quality
and supply, the acquisition also contributed to lower
production costs and improved gross profit margins. With
concerted effort from our staff, | am confident that the
Group is well-positioned to weather the impact of the
financial crisis.

Prospect

While concentrating its resources in the development of
products under the “Welling” brand remains an
indispensable task in strengthening the Group’s business
foundation, we also keep an eye on favourable
opportunities for further development and business
expansion for the benefit of the shareholders. In late 2008,
the Group via its subsidiary entered into a joint venture
agreement with Shanxi Linfen Huaxiang Industries Co., Ltd.
(LR EMNEEARAR). With the joint venture, the
Group widened its scope of operations and expanded the
range of products offered to its customers as it diversified
into new businesses of casting and high precision
processing.

The coming year is likely to remain a challenging one.
Prospects in the export sector are less than optimistic
given dwindled market demand in Europe and America.
The impact on the Group should be relatively mild as the
majority of its overall turnover is originated from domestic
sales. China should continue to enjoy driving economic
growth. While such growth will inevitably be slower in
tandem with the macro-economic environment, the State
policy of boosting domestic consumption and its related
economic stimulus measures, such as home appliance
subsidies for rural regions, will help to boost the rural living
standard and facilitate the development of third/fourth-tier
markets to the benefit of the Group’s business expansion.
With a leading market position established on the back of
product quality, the Group is confident that it will overcome
any difficulties to capitalise on opportunities for business
growth.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
(Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

Restructuring

On 31 March 2008, the Company completed a restructuring
exercise involving a significant business and assets swap
with the support of Midea Group Co., Ltd (“Midea”), the
substantial shareholder of the Company, by disposing of
the then original business of the Group, which mainly
included the manufacturing and distribution of electrical
household appliances, to Midea and acquiring from Midea
the entire issued share capital of Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd
(“Welling”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Midea
principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of
motors and electronic and electric components for electrical
household appliances. Afterwards, the business of the
Group moved to upstream in the electrical household
appliances industry and focused on the development of the
more promising upstream business of motors and electronic
and electric components.

Business Review

The Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company and earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$196,877,000 (2007: approximately HK$224,385,000)
and HK1.46 cents (2007: HK1.66 cents), respectively. For
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$5,193,278,000 (2007:
approximately HK$4,644,992,000), representing an increase
of approximately 12% over the same period last year. The
Group’s gross profit margin was approximately 10% (2007:
approximately 10%). Net asset value per share of the
Group was HK5.7 cents as at 31 December 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

Analysis of Major Business Operation

The financial crisis in 2008 sent the global economy into a
downturn and dealt a heavy blow to major international
markets. China’s economic growth also slowed down in line
with the global economy, to an extent affecting day-to-day
economic activities. To cope with the global economic crisis
triggered by the financial turmoil that originated in the
United States, the Group has adopted a series of measures
including stringent cost controls, stronger risk control and
management, enhancement of production efficiency by way
of technology upgrades, reductions in raw material
consumption and cutbacks in unessential expenses, which
enabled its business to sustain steady growth in such
severe market condition.

(1) Air-conditioning Motors Business:

The overall demand for household air-conditioners was
dragged down as a result of the global economic
crisis, with sales of the industry in 2008 decreasing by
more than 6% as compared to the figures for the
same period last year (Source: www.chinalOL.com (Z
¥71£43)). The sales in the commercial air-conditioners
increased by more than 9%, as the business of
commercial air-conditioners remained at a growth
stage that partially offset the impact of the global
economic crisis (Source: www.chinalOL.com (E 3£
#%)). The domestic commercial air-conditioners
business enjoyed growing market share as vigorous
growth momentum had been maintained with its
relatively high performance-price ratio of products and
the advantage of its close-to-market services.
Furthermore, as PRC has raised the energy efficiency
standard for household air-conditioners and stepped
up the pace on promoting converter air-conditioners
with high energy efficiency, industry players would
enhance the research and development, as well as
investment efforts in direct current motors, the
development of which is expected to gain pace as a
segment product of motors for household air-
conditioning.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

(2)

The Group recorded approximately 35,524,000 units
of domestic sales and 7,859,000 units of export sales
of air-conditioning motors for the year ended 31
December 2008. The aggregate sales volume
decreased by approximately 8% as compared to the
same period last year. Air-conditioning motors
recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$2,703,149,000 for 2008, which represented a
decrease of approximately 0.3% as compared to
turnover of approximately HK$2,710,294,000 for the
same period in 2007.

The Group increased its market share in motors for
household air-conditioning business of the Group by
developing its existing customer base in depth. For
commercial air-conditioning motors and air-conditioning
direct current motors segments, the Group
strengthened the marketing promotion and achieved
with enhanced growth of sales. In terms of
management and operation, reductions in production
costs and enhancements in operational efficiency were
achieved through higher proportion of self-made key
components, streamlined production, optimised motor
designs and stringent cost control. The competitive
edge of our products was further strengthened as a
result.

Washing Motors Business:

Globally, the major growing areas of the washing
machine industry will be in Asia, Latin America, East-
Central Africa, and Eastern Europe. In the domestic
market, due to the factors including the upgrading of
electrical appliances for urban areas and general
implementation of “Home Appliances Subsidy Policy
for Rural Areas”, the domestic sales volume of
washing machines in 2008 increased by more than
11% over the same period last year. The global
financial crisis had a greater impact on the major
market of tumble-type washing machines (i.e. Europe).
In December 2008, the export sales volume of
tumble-type washing machines decreased by
approximately 26% as compared to the same period
last year. The export sales volume of washing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

(3)

machines for the year increased by about 10%, which
was attributable to the worldwide shifting of
manufacturing resources for washing machines to the
PRC (Source: www.chinalOL.com (B 27E48)).

For 2008, the Group recorded approximately 8,412,000
units of domestic sales and approximately 6,177,000
units of export sales for its washing motors. Total
sales volume grew approximately 24% as compared
to the same period last year. The aggregate turnover
for the washing motors business was approximately
HK$1,635,403,000, which represented an increase of
approximately 26% as compared to approximately
HK$1,297,495,000 for the same period in 2007.

The Group continued to record strong growth in its
washing motors business to maintain its leading
position in the industry. The aggressive marketing
strategies adopted by the Group towards major
customers proved successful as increasing orders
were received from major customers. Meanwhile,
measures to enhance technical innovation of washing
motors, increase the proportion of self-made key
components and impose stringent control over product
quality improved product competitiveness and
contributed to the growth in sales volume. The Group
strengthened control over exchange rate exposure
given the relatively high proportion of exports for the
washing motors business.

In the Year, the Group acquired a manufacturing plant
for washing motors business in order to enhance its
capability to manufacture key components of washing
motors.

Electronic and Electric Components Business:

In 2008, in order to cope with the economic crisis
and to strengthen their position in the industry,
microwave oven manufacturers sought to increase
their development effort in the third/fourth-tier
domestic markets. Domestic sales of microwave ovens
increased by more than 15% over the same period
last year (Source: China Market Monitor (FF145)).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION EEEFWEDH

AND ANALYSIS

However, a negative growth rate of 5.8% was
recorded in the export sales volume of microwave
ovens (Source: www.chinalOL.com (EZ¥7E4R)) as the
global financial crisis loomed.

The Group recorded approximately 25,970,000 units
of domestic sales of and 1,776,000 units of export
sales of its electronic and electric components,
representing a growth of approximately 14% in total
sales volume compared to the same period last year.
The turnover of electronic and electric components
was approximately HK$798,202,000, representing an
increase of approximately 25% over approximately
HK$637,203,000 recorded in the same period in
2007.

The Group registered stable growth in all business
segments by developing a cluster of major customers
in export and domestic sales in great depth and
increasing efforts to support the businesses with
strategic products such as variable-frequency
transformer for microwave ovens and resistors. The
growth of our converter and resistor businesses
outperformed the industry. The development of shaded
pole motors followed a positive trend with a
satisfactory growth rate. Facing the challenges of
highly volatile costs of bulk purchase of raw materials
and rising of labour costs, the electronic and electric
components business implemented measures to
optimise its product structure, improve its production
processes and enhance control over costs and
product quality. Meanwhile, the Group adopted
measures to streamline production, develop key
components on an in-house basis, increase domestic
production of parts and components and change the
mode of export trading, which partially offset the
impact of increased costs of raw materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Financial Review
Liquidity

The Group’s liquidity ratio as at the balance sheet date was

EEENWEDN
(%)

Bt %5 12 R
RBES

TREINFIREERERBAKEDN

as follows: FEE S
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
—E2ENE —EET+F
t=A=+-8 gL Eaa=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
Restated
el
Current assets BB E 2,525,939 4,732,186
Current liabilities mEEE 2,522,925 5,523,927
Liquidity ratio™ REE LR 1.00 0.86
Note: ffsE -
(1) Liquidity ratio represents the total current assets divided by total (1) FRYESHERENAEERAIREESR

current liabilities as at the balance sheet date. The Group’s liquidity
ratios as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 were 0.86
and 1.00 respectively. The main reason for the improvement in
liquidity ratio was the disposal of the Disposed Group (refer to Note
1 to the consolidated financial statements), which was in net current
liabilities position as at 31 December 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital Structure and Pledge of Assets

The Group’s gearing ratio as at the balance sheet date was
as follows:

-

EEENWEDTN
(&)

EXERREERN

TRBINFIREERABERBAZEEDN
BEARBELE:

31 December

31 December

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETLF
ToA=1T— H peyci=haals
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
el
Total borrowings BB ER 671,608 801,164
Less: cash and cash equivalents WIRENMBEEEEY (217,124) (497,042)
Net borrowings EEOE ¥ 454,484 304,122
Total equity g 770,642 273,256
Gearing ratio BAREE L X 0.59 1.11
Note: Bt 5E -
@) Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction (refer to Note 1 to (1) ERNARNFTR _ZEENF=ZA=+—"H=

the consolidated financial statements) on 31 March 2008 by the
Company, the gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2008
was substantially improved.

As at 31 December 2008, short-term borrowings were secured by
the Group’s property, plant and equipment with net book value of
HK$133,229,000 (2007: HK$229,990,000) and leasehold land and
land use rights with net book value of HK$85,965,000 (2007:
HK$87,859,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

Capital Expenditure
During the Year, the Group had invested an amount of

approximately HK$354,468,000 (2007: HK$292,678,000) as
addition to the property, plant and equipment and leasehold

KRZER S E2HEEMBRERME
AAEER-_"ZZENF+_A=+—H
MERBELRGARNBRE -

RZZBENF+-A=+—R0 BHEX
LA 7K £2 (8] AR T )% (B 8 %6138,229,0007T (=&
T+ F : ##229,990,0007T) 2 M E - W FE
K M DA T BR TS B 8 #685,965,0007T (=
TZ L B #e7,859,0007T) 2 1 E L
KL M RIEA -

FREE

RZEZNF+_A=+—8 A&£HE
WEEMERZHABE -

BRI
AEEAN AEEBRENEE

354,468,000t (= & T + F: 8 &
292,678,0007T)  EARE W H - B E &
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

land and land use rights, which included the acquisition of
leasehold land and a manufacturing plant for washing
motor business.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group has entered into various copper and aluminium
future contracts and foreign exchange future contracts
amounting to approximately HK$30,635,000 (Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements) outstanding as at 31
December 2008 (2007: Nil).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed
approximately 8,439 full time employees in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group currently provides the staff with
competitive remuneration packages (including salary, bonus
and benefits), insurance (including pension, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and insurance for
labour injury) and housing fund. The Group also puts
significant efforts in the development, management and
planning of human resources. A good management system
for human resources will enhance employees’ contribution
to the Group and enable the Group to enjoy an advantage
of having strategic human resources.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme to motivate
employees to strive for future development and expansion
of the Group. In addition, the Group also provides other
benefits, including meal subsidies, housing subsidies,
cooperative medical services, assistance fund, group
activities, etc.

Exposure to the Fluctuations in Exchange Rate

Approximately 30% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euros and US dollars.
Similarly, the Group also imported raw materials in which
the suppliers were paid in Euros and US dollars. Foreign
exchange risks associated with these currencies were
partially offset as a result. Moreover, the Group has made
arrangements to purchase currency forward contracts to
hedge foreign exchange exposure for certain export trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

The money market was volatile during the year, and the
Group incurred more foreign exchange loss as a result. The
Group has strengthened control over risk of the fluctuations
in exchange rate, and reviewed from time to time the
sufficiency and appropriateness of the financial instruments
which were used to hedge significant foreign currency risks.

Business Prospects

Export sales of products fell due to the global economic
turmoil and the recession of major markets such as Europe
and America, while sales at home were also weakened in
line with slower domestic economic growth. As a result, the
production/sales growth rate of the electrical household
appliances industry as a whole may lose further ground.
Manufacturers of components for electrical household
appliances are facing more intense competition in the
market, pressurised by the changing balance in supply-
demand and downstream electrical household appliances
manufacturers emerging from business consolidations with
stronger business performance. In the coming vyears, the
Group will further enhance its operational standard and
overall profitability by improving the quality of its products,
consolidating the “Welling” brand advantage, accelerating
the pace of product structure optimisation and expanding
its business scale. We will also develop relevant new
products and continue to implement strategies of cost
reduction. The Group will focus on the business of motors
for electrical household appliances, strengthen risk
management and consolidate its market share and leading
position in the industry, with aspirations to become one of
the world’s best suppliers for parts and components of
electrical household appliances. Furthermore, China’s policy
of increasing domestic demand and the campaign on home
appliances for rural areas has accelerated the development
of rural markets and third/fourth-tier markets. The Group
will seize every opportunity to foster growth of its domestic
sales.

The household air-conditioner market has currently entered
into a mature phase while the commercial air-conditioner
market is in a phase of growth. The Group will continue to
advance research and development as well as process
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improvement of air-conditioning motors, so as to solidify its
leading global market shares for its major product, namely
motors for household air-conditioning. Meanwhile, the
Group will improve product structures, increase investments
in new segments such as commercial air-conditioning
motors, air-conditioning direct current motors and
refrigerator compressor motors businesses, aiming to grow
these categories into its major products in the next few
years.

Our washing motors business will continue to expand its
induction motor business to enhance economies of scale
within the range under cost control. Meanwhile, the Group
will increase its investment in the universal motors for
tumble-type washing machines to step up with the
development of high-end universal motors and the
marketing of small universal motors for food processing.
The Group will also advance the research and development
of strategic products and step up with the marketing of
new products such as three-phase converter motors and
agitator motors, targeting to enlarge our market share in
Europe and extend our presence to the American market.

In respect of its electronic and electric component
business, the Group will focus on increasing its sales efforts
in shaded pole motors, resistors and electronic ballasts
while assuring its global leading position in microwave oven
converters, aiming at growth in both the business scale
and the profitability of the Group.

In the coming years, the Group will consolidate and expand
its business in components for major electrical household
appliances, as well as increase investment in the
development of related products such as pump motors
through industrial upgrades, business restructuring,
acquisitions and technical cooperation. Meanwhile, the
Group will also actively foster the casting and high precision
process business through the entering into of a joint
venture agreement with Shanxi Linfen Huaxiang Industries
Co., Ltd. in late 2008. With stringent risks control, the
Group will continue to engage in technological innovation
and development of new businesses, in order to achieve
sustainable and healthy development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high
standard of corporate governance so as to enhance the
transparency and accountability to the shareholders of the
Company. The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) believes that good corporate governance will
contribute to maximize the corporate value of the Company
to its shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company has fully compiled with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all of the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future
development direction, overall strategies and policies, the
evaluation of the performance of the Group and the
management and approval of matters that are of material
and substantial in nature. Senior management of the
Company was delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Group. Senior
management of each division is responsible for different
businesses and functions of the Group in accordance with
its particular area of expertise. The Board has also
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delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.
Details of these Board committees are set out below in this

report.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board held
six meetings, Directors participated these meetings either in
person or through electronic means of communication. The
attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2008 are as

TEERBE

EERNEREEEEEGREREE
F-REEFEZBEIHEURARS
TX-

Bz _TZENF+_RA=+—HBILHF
B EFXQERTAAREE EFUH
FENEFRAMATALZEZTER %
EENEE_TTNET-_A=1+—H
HTFEHFEFEEH ZLBENT

follows:
Number of meetings
attended/held during
the tenure of the
respective Directors
REERNEAHE
Directors BEx HE/ BTEERY
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Jiang Deqing =@ %5‘6& 3/3
(appointed on 31 August 2008) MRZZEZENFNA=T—HBEZMA
Mr. Qu Fei BERES 4/4
(appointed on 31 March 2008) (EA_ ST N\EF=A=T—HREZH
Mr. Gao Fazhong i\ ?EE 4/4
(appointed on 31 March 2008) (E’\_ ST N\E=A=+T—HEZMA
Ms. Yuan Liqun =ABET L 5/6
Mr. Li Jianwei EEELEA 5/6
Mr. Zheng Weikang ?Iﬂiff‘ﬁi 4/4
(appointed on 31 March 2008) (ﬁA_ ST N\F=A=1T—REZMA
Mr. Wu Zhigiang %ﬁf‘ﬁi 2/3
(appointed on 31 March 2008 and (EA_ T \F=ZR=1T—HEZF:
resigned on 31 August 2008) TR=ZZFENFENA=+—BET
Mr. Fang Hongbo E/j%/)ﬁif*ﬁi 2/2
(resigned on 31 March 2008) RZEENF=ZA=T—HEMT
Mr. Zhang Quan @E%f‘ii
(resigned on 31 March 2008) MRZZEZNF=A=1T—HEMH 2/2
Mr. Li Donglai é%ﬂﬁi
(resigned on 31 March 2008) MRZZEZNF=A=1T—HEMH 2/2

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Number of meetings
attended/held during

the tenure of the
respective Directors

RESERERHE

Directors BEx HE/BTEERY
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Cai Qiwu SHHNLE 4/4

(appointed on 31 March 2008) RZZEZENF=ZA=1+—HEZMA)
Ms. Tan Xuemei BEFrT

(appointed on 17 December 2008) RZEENF+TATEBEZA 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xinhua RIMELLE

(resigned on 17 December 2008) M_ZEZENF+ B +LHET 3/6
Independent non-executive Directors B I FHTEE
Mr. Chan Wai Dune PR 4 o 4 £ 6/6
Mr. Lam Ming Yung NEED e 6/6
Ms. Chen Chunhua REER T 5/6

For each of the Board meetings held during for the year
ended 31 December 2008, each Director had been
consulted beforehand and served with prior notice to
enable him/her to include matters in the agenda of the
forthcoming Board meeting.

The Board will hold four regular meetings every year. The
Company generally gives at least 14 days notice in advance
for regular Board meetings and gives reasonable notice for
all other Board meetings in order to give all Directors
opportunity to attend the meetings. During the year ended
31 December 2008, the Company had complied with the
said notice requirements for Board meetings by giving all
Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
Board procedures are complied with applicable rules and
regulations and corporate governance practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of
Board meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, decisions reached,
concerns raised and divergent views expressed at the
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meetings. For each of the Board meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2008, draft and final versions of
the minutes of Board meetings were sent to all Directors
within reasonable time (generally within 14 days for both
cases) after the Board meeting had been held for their
comments and records. All Board minutes are available for
inspection by all Directors.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all
Directors the rights, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

The provisions of the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”) have set out a list of matters that should not
be dealt with by way of circulation of written resolution by
Directors and such list includes the circumstances where a
Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board considered to be
material.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against the
Directors was arranged.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are performed by separate individuals so
as to enhance the division of responsibilities between them
and to ensure a balance of power and authority. The
Chairman is responsible for taking the lead of the Board in
determining the strategic direction of the Group, ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on business
contemplated at Board meetings and receive timely,
adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with the support of other
executive Directors is responsible for strategic planning of
different business functions and day-to-day management
and operations of the Group.

Welling Holding Limited
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Mr. Fang Hongbo had acted as the Chairman of the Board
up to the date of completion of restructuring of the Group
on 31 March 2008 (“Completion”). Since then, Mr. Cai Qiwu
has taken up the role of the Chairman of the Board.

Mr. Zhang Quan had acted as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company up to the date of Completion, and then
Mr. Wu Zhigiang was appointed in place of Mr. Zhang as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 31 March
2008 and up to the date of his resignation on 31 August
2008. Since then, Mr. Jiang Deqging has taken up the role
of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eleven Directors, including
seven executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors in order to
maintain a balanced composition with a strong independent
element on the Board.

From 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2008, the Board
comprised five executive Directors, Mr. Fang Hongbo
(Chairman), Mr. Zhang Quan, Mr. Li Donglai, Ms. Yuan
Ligun and Mr. Li Jianwei, a non-executive Director, Mr.
Zhang Xinhua, and three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Dune, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms.
Chen Chunhua.

With effect from the date of Completion, the composition of
the Board has been changed to comprise six executive
Directors, Mr. Wu Zhigiang, Mr. Qu Fei, Mr. Gao Fazhong,
Ms. Yuan Ligun, Mr. Li Jianwei and Mr. Zheng Weikang,
two non-executive Directors, Mr. Cai Qiwu (Chairman) and
Mr. Zhang Xinhua and three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Dune, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms.
Chen Chunhua.

On 31 August 2008, Mr. Wu Zhigiang resigned as an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and Mr. Jiang Deqing was appointed in his
replacement as an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.
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On 17 December 2008, Mr. Zhang Xinhua resigned as a
non-executive Director of the Company and Ms. Tan
Xuemei was appointed in his replacement as a non-
executive Director of the Company.

On 1 January 2009, Mr. Cai Qiwu was re-designated as an
executive Director and the Chairman of the Company.

The biographies of each of the current Directors are set out
in pages 36 to 40 in this annual report, which demonstrate
a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company.

The Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer, have no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships with each other.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the three independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent within the definitions of the
Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and
Removal of Directors

The Articles require that (i) every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and (i) the
managing Director of the Company (if any) shall whilst
holding office as such be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors to retire by
rotation in each year.

The Articles provide that at every annual general meeting of
the Company, and notwithstanding any contractual or other
terms on which a Director may be appointed or engaged,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
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rotation, provided that, notwithstanding anything therein,
every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. The Board is of the view that such
mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to the
appointments to the Board and that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company
had entered into letters of appointment with Mr. Chan Wai
Dune, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua, each
an independent non-executive Director and Mr. Cai Qiwu
and Mr. Zhang Xinhua, each a non-executive Director, for a
term commencing on 28 May 2008 and ending on the date
of the Company’s next annual general meeting, as their
respective then existing letters of appointment expired on
27 May 2008. On 17 December 2008, the Company
entered into a letter of appointment with Ms. Tan Xuemei
for a term commencing on the date of her appointment as
non-executive Director and ending on the date of the
Company’s next annual general meeting. Such letters of
appointment shall be terminable by either party upon one
month’s written notice to the other party or the payment to
other party of a sum equal to the relevant Director’s
monthly remuneration. On 1 January 2009, the letter of
appointment entered into between the Company and Mr.
Cai Qiwu was terminated upon the re-designation of Mr.
Cai as executive Director and the Chairman.

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
The Board as a whole is responsible for appointment of
new Directors. According to the Articles, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board, subject to re-election by the
shareholders at the next annual general meeting.
Consideration would be taken, among other things, to the
nominee’s qualifications, experience and ability relevant to
the requirements of the Company’s business. It is believed
that the Board collectively is able to identify and select
suitable candidates to be appointed to the Board and
ensure the Board has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business
of the Company
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The Board has examined and gave advice on the
employment terms of senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2008. The Board has also reviewed
and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

Responsibilities of Directors

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities as
a Director of the Company, each of the newly appointed
Director is given a comprehensive orientation package
containing the information with regard to the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements and the
business and governance policies of the Company. Updates
will also be given to all Directors when necessary to keep
them abreast of the latest changes and development in
legal, regulatory and corporate governance requirements to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The non-executive Directors are active in participating in
Board meetings to bring an independent judgement on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conduct.
They will take lead where potential conflicts of interests of
other Directors arise. They serve as members of various
Board committees and will scrutinize the performance of
the Group in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives and monitor the reporting of performance.

Supply of and Access to Information

In respect of regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying Board papers are sent in full to all Directors
at least three days before the date of a Board or Board
committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the
Board committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable members of the Board and the Board
committees to make informed decisions. Where any
Director requires more information than is volunteered by
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management, each Director may contact senior
management through individual and independent channel to
make further enquires if necessary and such enquiries will
be responded to by management within a reasonable time
with sufficient details. Furthermore, Board papers and
minutes are available for inspection by Directors and Board
committee members.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees with
defined scope of duties in written form. These Board
committees are the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee.

The written terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Executive
Committee are available on the Company’s website
http://www.welling.com.cn.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established its remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) in September 2005.
Majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Chen Chunhua
(chairman), Mr. Chan Wai Dune and Mr. Lam Ming Yung
and two executive Directors, Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Zheng
Weikang.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
the followings:

() to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration; and
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the

to determine the

non-executive Directors.

remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board the remuneration of
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year ended 31 December 2008, members participated B FMEEeRITMiIien £ 8
these meetings either in person or through electronic EHREARIIUEFRAFT AL EZ
means of communication. The attendance record of each @ Riéi@}iz,\ﬁ}*iﬁ@ﬂlf,@\%
member at the Remuneration Committee meetings is set wE TSNS
out as follows:
Number of meetings
attended/held during
the tenure of the
respective committee
members
Members of the EZEEHNEREEHE
Remuneration Committee FMEEERE HE/ BTEERE
Ms. Chen Chunhua (Chairman) BREELR L (EE) 1/2
Mr. Chan Wai Dune BoR 4 3ty 5T £ 2/2
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MEAE kA4 2/2
Mr. Cai Qiwu (appointed as member ZHREE (RZZEZENF 1/1
on 31 August 2008) NA=+—HEZTAKE)
Mr. Zheng Weikang (appointed as BERLE (RZZEZTNF 2/2
member on 31 March 2008) “A=t+—BEZEAKE)
Mr. Wu Zhigiang (appointed as REREE (RZEZENF=A 1/1
member on 31 March 2008 and _—f— BEZTAKE
ceased to be member on YHRZZEZENFNA=+—H
31 August 2008) T~HAKE)
Mr. Fang Hongbo (ceased to be AR EE (RZEZENF N/A
member on 31 March 2008) —A=+—HTBAKE) A
Mr. Li Jianwei (ceased to be member BELEE(RZZZEZENF N/A
on 31 March 2008) _H_+ BHTBEAKE) 3@ A

During

the year ended 31

works:

(0

reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of i)
executive Directors and senior management after
consultations with the Chairman; and
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(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration and terms of appointment of non-
executive Directors.

The Company’s remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management are set on the basis that the
remuneration level of the Directors and senior management
will be linked with their responsibilities and their
contributions to the achievement of corporate performance
target of the Company as resolved by the Board from time
to time. For the purpose of determining the level of
remuneration of Directors and senior management, appraisal
of the work performance of Directors and senior
management had been conducted during the Year. Such
work performance of Directors and senior management was
judged by the extent to which the Company’s budget target
was met and the financial performance of the Company in
terms of sales revenue and net profits as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements was achieved. No Director
is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in Note 25(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including the advice of professional firms, to
discharge its duties, if necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established its audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in August 1999. All members of the
Audit Committee are independent non-executive Directors,
one of whom has possessed professional qualifications and
accounting and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chan Wai Dune
(chairman), Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others,
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of
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internal controls and risk management of the Group,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit
function in the context of the Group’s overall risk
management system, reviewing the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process and advising on the appointment of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2008, members participated these
meetings either in person or through electronic means of
communication. The attendance record of each member at
the Audit Committee meetings is set out as follows:

TEERBE

BAFEZNEYRNERRAREERR
ZRRR AN B R B EE
NIZBRF 2R A RREEINEZ
ZEIRHER -

HE-_ZZN\F+_A=+—HLF
B EREZESCRTNAEH T8
@BZE\—H FRUBETFEMARLEZ

EeR XLECKREHEERZED
gﬁzﬁﬁmT-

Number of meetings
attended/held during

the tenure of the
respective committee

members

BEESNERETHE

Members of Audit Committee ERZEE|HRE HEBOTEERE
Mr. Chan Wai Dune (Chairman) BoR 4 s ST (£ ) 4/4
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MBEA B L AE 4/4
Ms. Chen Chunhua BREEZ T 3/4

Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary who also serves as secretary of the
Audit Committee. Draft and final versions of the minutes of
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members of the
Committee for their comments and records respectively, in
both cases generally within 14 days after the meeting.
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Audit
Committee had performed the following works:

()  reviewed the Company’s 2007 annual report and 2008
interim report;

(i) reviewed and advised on the terms of engagement
and other matters relating to the external auditor;

(i) reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal
controls and risk management of the Group;
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(iv) reviewed the Group’s connected and continuing
connected transactions entered during the Year;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and the non-audit services provided by
the external auditor; and

(vij advised on significant events of the Company and
highlighted the related risks to the management.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2008
consolidated financial statements, including the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, and
recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
The annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2008 has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for
the re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the Company’s external auditor for the year 2009. The
recommendation will be put forward for shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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During the vyear ended 31 December 2008, the
remuneration paid to the Company’s external Hong Kong
auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:

TEERBE (&)

RE_FE\F+-A=+—AIE
AN RSN A D R
EEHBERHLAZ MBI MT -

Fee paid/payable

BB ER

HK$’000

BET T

Audit services ZE R 2,762
Interim review and review of continuing FHERN L ERNRE

connected transactions fEE R 5 1,295

Non-audit services in respect of tax R EREEABZ
advice IEZER T 223
Total EEr 4,280

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Board from time to time. Under its term of reference,
the Executive Committee shall be responsible for
determination on the matters relating to the Group’s day-to-
day operations and administration.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group on a going concern basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Company are set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 59 to 61 of this
annual report.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal controls in the Company and
reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.
The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement, fraud or loss and to manage, but not to
eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Company’s
objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined
management structure with specified limits of authority, is
designed to (a) help the achievement of business
objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets; (b) ensure
proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review
the Group’s internal control system which covers financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions to ensure that it remains efficient
and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System
Manual (“Manual”) which was approved by the Board. This
Manual contains a comprehensive overview and description
of the objectives, content, methods and duties of the
internal control system, and facilitates the ongoing
examination and evaluation of the Company’s compliance
with existing rules and regulations and of the effectiveness
of internal controls. During the year ended 31 December
2008 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company consistently applied the full set of Manual which
covers the control of high-risk areas of operations,
suppliers, sales, finance and personnel management. The
Board has, through the Audit Committee, carried out
ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s internal
control system.

During the Year, in order to enhance and further improve
the internal control system of the Group, the Company has
engaged independent professional consultant to conduct
the internal control review on process of each of different
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divisions of the Group and no significant weaknesses were
noted. After taking into account the recommendations from
independent professional consultant to the Board,
management has formulated or amended a series of
internal control measures to enhance control over various
business processes and effectively prevent any business
risk arising from operations.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and
believes that, such system is sufficient in providing
reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, transactions are properly authorized and proper
accounting records are maintained.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an
open forum for communication between the Board and the
shareholders of the Company. Sufficient notice for general
meetings will be given to the Shareholders pursuant to the
Articles and the requirements of the Listing Rules.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the general
meetings of the Company. The Chairman of the Board and
other Directors being members of Audit Committee or
Remuneration Committee are available at annual general
meeting to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Members of the independent board committee are available
to answer questions at general meeting to approve
connected transaction which is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval. To facilitate enforcement of
shareholders’ rights, substantially different issues at general
meetings are dealt with under separate resolutions.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the
Company fall to be disclosed in accordance with the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements will be published in a
timely manner through the Company’s website so as to
safeguard the shareholders’ rights of information.
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The Company’s website at www.welling.com.cn provides
timely and updated information on investor relations,
corporate governance and other latest news of the
Company to enable shareholders and investors to have
timely access to information about the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. CAI Qiwu, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company on 31 March
2008 and re-designated as executive Director and the
Chairman on 1 January 2009. Mr. Cai is a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee of
the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1992 and has
held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group. He has considerable experience in strategic
management, risk management and research and
development activities. Mr. Cai is the chief executive officer
of Midea Mechanical and Electronic Device Group, an
operational department within Midea Group Co., Ltd.
(“Midea”). He was a director of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd.
("*GD Midea”) (resigned on 7 March 2009), a company
controlled by Midea and the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cai holds a Master
of Technology Mechanical Manufacturing Degree from the
Huazhong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. JIANG Deging, aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 31 August 2008. Mr. Jiang is a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in May 1995. He has been the General Manager of
washing motor division of the Group since January 2005
and responsible for overall management of washing motor
division. He has held various senior management positions
in the Group and has over 13 years of experience in the
washing motor industry and years of managerial experience.
Mr. Jiang serves as a vice-chairman in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Jiang holds a Bachelor Degree in
Business Administration (Industrial Trade) from Chongaging
University.

Mr. QU Fei, aged 35, was appointed as an executive
Director and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company
on 31 March 2008. Mr. Qu is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in
1998. He has held various senior management positions in
the Group and has considerable experience in operations
and strategic management, information technology, and
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purchasing activities. Mr. Qu is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qu holds a Bachelor
Degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of Finance
and Economics.

Mr. GAO Fazhong, aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Gao is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea
Group in 1994. He has held various senior management
positions in the Midea Group and has considerable
experience in financial management. Mr. Gao is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gao
holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Beijing
Technology and Business University. He is an accountant
accredited by the PRC Ministry of Finance.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 39, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 17 November 2004
and re-designated as an executive Director of the Company
on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. She joined the Midea Group in
1992. She has held various senior management positions in
the Midea Group and has considerable experience in
finance, audit and overall management. Ms. Yuan is a
director and vice-president of Midea and the chief financial
officer of Midea Group. She was appointed as a director of
GD Midea, a company controlled by Midea and the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, on
31 March 2009. She previously was a supervisor of GD
Midea (resigned on 23 February 2009). She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yuan
holds a Master of International Management Degree from
The Australian National University.

Mr. LI Jianwei, aged 42, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 17 November 2004
and re-designated as an executive Director of the Company
on 14 June 2005. Mr. Li is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in
1994 and has held various senior management positions in
the Midea Group. Mr. Li has considerable experience in
strategic development activities. Mr. Li is a director and
vice president of Midea and the chief strategic development
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officer of Midea Group. He is also a director of GD Midea,
a company controlled by Midea and the shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Li holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree from Fudan
University.

Mr. ZHENG Weikang, aged 40, was appointed as an
executive Director and the Chief Director of the International
Offices of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Zheng is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Executive
Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in
1986. He has held various senior management positions in
the Midea Group and has considerable experience in
financial and overall management. Mr. Zheng is currently a
director of Midea International Corp. Co., Ltd and certain
non-listed subsidiaries of the Midea Group. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zheng
holds a Master of International Management Degree from
The Australian National University.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. TAN Xuemei, aged 40, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 17 December 2008.
Ms. Tan is the deputy general manager of Guangzhou
Baiyun Agriculture Industry & Commerce Corporation. Ms.
Tan has over 20 years of experience in corporate
accounting and financial management. Ms. Tan graduated
from the University of Broadcasting Television of Guangdong
with professional qualification in accountancy.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Wai Dune, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 30
December 1998. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He has over 28 years of experience in the
financial sector, particularly in the areas of audit and
taxation. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr.
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Chan was a member of the Selection Committee for the
establishment of the First Government of the HKSAR. Mr.
Chan is currently a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of 11th Guangzhou
Municipal Committee and a member of the Executive
Council of China Overseas Friendship Association. Mr. Chan
is the managing director of CCIF CPA Limited. In addition,
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of
a number of companies which are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, including Chaoyue Group Limited,
Jinheng Automotive Safety Technology Holdings Limited,
Minmetals Resources Limited, Sam Woo Holdings Limited
and Heng Xin China Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited and Hunan Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited
(retired on 28 August 2008, 28 August 2008 and 6 March
2009 respectively), which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 1
December 1999. Mr. Lam is a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He graduated from the School of Law of Shanghai Eastern
Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence with a
Bachelor of Law Degree. Mr. Lam started practicing law in
1987 in the province of Fujian in the PRC, and moved to
Hong Kong in mid-1993. He was registered as a foreign
lawyer with The Law Society of Hong Kong in July 1995,
and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant, Corporate
Finance, and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong
Kong office of Sidley Austin LLP. Mr. Lam is also currently
an independent non-executive director of China Agrotech
Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong) and China Lifestyle Food & Beverages Group Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore) and a non-
executive director of China Mining Resources Group Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong).

Ms. CHEN Chunhua, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 22
December 2004. Ms. Chan is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
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Committee of the Company. Ms. Chen holds a
Postdoctorate Degree in Enterprise Management from
Nanjing University. She was a professor, tutor of doctoral
candidates and Vice Dean of the Faculty of Economic and
Trade in the School of Economics and Commerce of South
China University of Technology. She was a visiting professor
for the Asia-Pacific EMBA Program of The National
University of Singapore and is a part-time professor of
Nanjing University. Ms. Chen’s research speciality was
enterprise management, particularly enterprise organisation
and operational management. Ms. Chen was a president
and a director of Shandong Liuhe Company Limited and
has considerable experience in enterprise operational
management. Ms. Chen is presently an independent
director of China Merchants Fund Management Co. Ltd.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 36, joined the Group in July
1996. Mr. Zhou is the general manager of the air-
conditioning motors division of the Group. He has held
various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in sales, marketing and overall
management of business of the Group. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor Degree in Mechanical Engineering from Harbin
Institute of Technology.

Mr. ZHANG Jun, aged 38, joined the Group in March
1995. Mr. Zhang is the general manager of electronic and
electric component division of the Group. He has held
various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in the business operation
management of the Group. Mr. Zhang holds a Master of
Mechanical Engineering Degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 March 2008
and approved by the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong, the name of the Company was changed from
“Hualing Holdings Limited” to “Welling Holding Limited” and
the change of the Chinese name of the Company from “Z
EEBEARATF to “BEERBRAFR with effect from 15
April 2008.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
business and geographical segments is set out in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on pages 66 to 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2007: Nil).

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEEHG

EEBUSRALAARALEARE
“PEN\ET-AS-ALFEZE
REBHHEAVHRE -

ERNE AR

BEARRARZZEZENF=-A+N\AE
TZBRRENRE LBB2ERIRE
X OREEFEBLRFMEMEE  AQ
Al 2 # X % B /[ Hualing Holdings
Limited] 82 28 % [ Weling Holding
Limited | » P X HEBIR [FEEZEBFR
ARAERABIBEZERER QAL B
ZEEN\FUATRABRER -

FTEXBREE®WE 2 DM

AABZEFBEEBRREER - &
NEZ EBXEBRE NGRS MWK
10 °

AEBRAFEREHZMIBED B 2FE
BREOMENGEE VB RERMES -

BRI

AEBERAFEZFERRN F66H £67
BZiFAaWERA -

EETERBREAFE ZRHERE
—ETAF B

it

ARFBARERATE 2 HRRD
BEER A M EREM 7 -




"o

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Company and the Group during the Year are set out in
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment
purposes during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 16(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2008, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to HK$106,094,000 (2007: Nil).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, restated and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 224. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the Year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the Year.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 27 June
2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as approved by
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s business. Details of the Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in Note 16(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CAI Qiwu (appointed as non-executive Chairman on
31 March 2008 and re-designated as executive Chairman
on 1 January 2009)

Mr. JIANG Deqing (appointed on 31 August 2008)

Mr. QU Fei (appointed on 31 March 2008)

Mr. GAO Fazhong (appointed on 31 March 2008)

Ms. YUAN Ligqun

Mr. LI Jianwei

Mr. ZHENG Weikang (appointed on 31 March 2008)

Mr. WU Zhigiang (appointed on 31 March 2008 and
resigned on 31 August 2008)

Mr. FANG Hongbo (resigned on 31 March 2008)
Mr. ZHANG Quan (resigned on 31 March 2008)

Mr. LI Donglai (resigned on 31 March 2008)
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(Continued)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. TAN Xuemei (appointed on 17 December 2008)

Mr. ZHANG Xinhua (resigned on 17 December 2008)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Wai Dune
Mr. LAM Ming Yung
Ms. CHEN Chunhua

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company, Mr. Jiang
Deqing and Ms. Tan Xuemei will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with Article 91 of the Company, Mr. Gao
Fazhong, Mr. Li Jianwei and Mr. Lam Ming Yung will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 22 April 2008, the Company entered into the letters of
appointment with Mr. Chan Wai Dune, Mr. Lam Ming Yung
and Ms. Chen Chunhua, each an independent non-
executive Director, and Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Zhang Xinhua,
each a non-executive Director, for a term commencing on
28 May 2008 and ending on the date of the Company’s
next annual general meeting, as their respective letters of
appointment expired on 27 May 2008.
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On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into a letter
of appointment with Ms. Tan Xuemei for a term
commencing on her appointment as a non-executive
Director on 17 December 2008 and ending on the date of
the Company’s next annual general meeting.

The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that
the remuneration of the Directors shall be determined in
accordance with the remuneration policy as approved by
the Board from time to time. Such letters of appointment
are terminable by either party upon one month’s written
notice to the other party or the payment to the other party
of a sum equal to the relevant Director’s monthly
remuneration. These letters of appointment are exempt from
the shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 13.68 of
the Listing Rules.

On 1 January 2009, the letter of appointment entered into
between the Company and Mr. Cai Qiwu was terminated
upon the re-designation of Mr. Cai as executive Chairman
of the Company became effective.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company had received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence and considered that each of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent based on the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
by the Group’s Human Resources Department based on
the merit, qualifications and competence of employees.

The emoluments of all executive Directors of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance of
the relevant Directors and comparable market statistics. No
Director will be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives to the Directors and
eligible employees.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are
set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 36 to 40.
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(Continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity or Debt Securities

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company as at
31 December 2008 in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong), as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or which have to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKSE”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

Interests in share options of the Company (long
positions)
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R-BBN\F

R=BBN\F t=A
—A—BRFE REFER REXFET =t+-—-H TEE ATHEHR  ATEHR
#E ZBRE HoBRE GE2BRE SE2BRE B BHEH A #RA

Directors: EE:

Chan Wai Dune PR 4 i 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
Lam Ming Yung ] 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
Chen Chunhua BRE&ETE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78 30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017

Share options were granted to Directors under the Share
Option Scheme. The consideration for each of the grants
of options as mentioned-above was HK$1. Details of Share
Options Scheme are disclosed in Note 16(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Other than those interests disclosed above, as at 31
December 2008, no Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO).

Saved as disclosed herein, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding company, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of
the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporations.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

Mr. Fang Hongbo, an executive Director who resigned on
31 March 2008, is a director of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd.
(“*GD Midea”) and certain subsidiaries of GD Midea. GD
Midea and its subsidiaries (“GD Midea Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
household electrical appliances including refrigerators and
air-conditioners, which may have competed with the
business of the Group during the period from 1 January
2008 to 31 March 2008. Midea Group (excluding the
Group) is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of electrical household appliances including refrigerators
and air-conditioners, which may also have competed with
the business of the Group during the period from 1 January
2008 to 31 March 2008.

Mr. Li Jianwei, an executive Director, is currently a director
of GD Midea. He is also a director and vice president of
Midea. Ms. Yuan Ligun, an executive Director, is currently a
director of GD Midea. She is also a director and vice
president of Midea. Both the Midea Group and GD Midea
Group are principally engaged in businesses which may
have competed with the business of the Group during the
period from 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2008.

Welling Holding Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Quan, an executive Director who resigned on 31
March 2008, is a director of GD Midea which may have
competed with the business of the Group during the period
from 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2008.

Mr. Li Dong Lai, an executive Director who resigned on 31
March 2008, is a general manager of international
household air-conditioning division of GD Midea which may
have competed with the business of the Group during the
period from 1 January 2008 to 31 March 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, save as disclosed above, none
of the Directors was interested in any business apart from
the business of the Group, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.

The Audit Committee, which consists of all independent
non-executive Directors, meets regularly to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial performance and internal control
systems of the Group. The Group is therefore capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from, the businesses in which the Directors have
declared interests.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 December 2008, the following persons, other than

EEEHE (&

TERRES

a Director or chief executive of the Company, had an =
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying =

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required

to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

— = =

RIBEZE S LB GRDIEBHRATFE Z
R IINEDS
T—H TAAL(BEFHARA &
BITBABRIN RAR A2 B M8

NE+ =R

AR Oh AR REEIIRR

Number of shares

Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder held shareholding
BREE BB BERGOHE BREANBDL
Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited (“Midea (Cayman Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
Islands)”) (formerly known as Welling Electric Holding
(Cayman Islands) Limited) (Note 1)
ENERk (FBE)ERQF ((EN (He#S))) e
(AR EERER (REES)BRAR)IE)
Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
(“Midea Holding”) (Note 2)
EWMEREV)ER AR ([FEHEZER DM E2) )
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3) Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
EMEEER QA (I8 1) (HES) e
Foshan Shunde Tiantuo Investment Co., Ltd. Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
(“Shunde Tiantuo”) (Note 4)
BILTIEEEXEREBR AR (NNEEXE DK F4) )
Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%
o] Z & 5% & (Pt 5E5) e
Ms. Liang Fengchai (Note 6) Long position 10,106,023,897 74.97%

RE W+ (HIE6)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. These 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company were registered in
the name of and beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).

2. Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897
shares of the Company which Midea (Cayman Islands) was
interested in by virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in Midea
(Cayman Islands).

3. Midea was deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares
of the Company which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested in by
virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in Midea Holding.

4. The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 75% by Shunde
Tiantuo. Accordingly, Shunde Tiantuo was deemed to be interested
in the 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company which Midea was
deemed to be interested in by virtue of its holding 75% equity
interest in Midea.

5. The registered capital of Shunde Tiantuo is owned as to 90% by
Mr. He Xiangjian. Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be
interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares of the Company which
Shunde Tiantuo was deemed to be interested in by virtue of his
holding 90% equity interest in Shunde Tiantuo.

6. Ms. Liang Fengchai is the spouse of Mr. He Xiangjian and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 10,106,023,897 shares of
the Company which Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested
in.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

—er®

EETHE (A)

B &E -

1. EN(HEHBINELRELNESHES
#%%10,106,023 897 A A R A7 °

2. ZNEREFEEN (FASHSE) 100%M%
BEMERAREN (HEES ) BEEREY
10,106,023,897A% 2~ A Al f& {0 P i B 1 25 ©

3. E W E B 2 A1 IR100% A% 7 M % R AR
M (FAEHS)EA . 210,106,023,897
EARBBRMD P IEEERS -

4, BRI ENFEMELRZ75% - Bt
g1 R FE 45 B = 75% A% #E T % 18 B R
WS BB # 2 210,106,023,897% X
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5. MEREEBEFIBERAFMELRZ
Q% - HI  MERLEERFEIERRA
Q%K RET A8 AN E=E XIT WS AEE
2% 210,106,023,807T A A A & F B
S o
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together
accounted for 47% of the Group’s total sales during the
Year. The five largest customers are set out below:

1. 11% from Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave Electrical
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which and the
Group are under common significant influence of
Midea.

2. 9% from Guangdong Midea Refrigeration Appliances
Co., Ltd., of which certain Directors of the Company
are directors and it is controlled by Midea.

3. 5% from Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu Air-
conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd., of which certain
Directors of the Company are directors and it is
controlled by Midea.

4. The remaining two largest customers accounted for
22% of the total sales during the Year and none of
the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the said major customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together
accounted for 32% of the Group’s total purchase during
the Year. The five largest suppliers are set out below:

1. 18% from Foshan Midea Domestic Electric Co., Ltd.
(“Midea Domestic”), of which a Director of the
Company is director. Midea Domestic is controlled by
a substantial shareholder of Midea.

2. The remaining four largest suppliers accounted for
14% of the total purchases during the Year and none
of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an
interest in the said major suppliers.

Welling Holding Limited
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Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions:

Connected Transactions

(1

On 31 March 2008, the Company completed the
restructuring exercise involving a significant business
and assets swap with Welling Electric Holding (Cayman
Islands) Limited (now known as Midea Holding
(Cayman Islands) Limited) (“Vendor’).

Vendor was a company indirectly controlled by Midea,
a substantial shareholder of the Company, and hence
a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Details of the transaction are disclosed in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

On 3 November 2008, the Company through its
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Foshan Welling
Washer Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd, entered into
the assets acquisition agreement with Foshan Huiao
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Huiao”) for the
acquisition of the assets comprising primarily the
parcel of land situated at No. 21 Gang Qian Road,
Industrial Zone, Beijiao Neighborhood Committee,
Beijiao Town, Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong, the PRC
and the factory premises erected thereon with a total
gross floor area and a total site area of approximately
58,632.81 sgq. m. and 81,068.3 sg.m. respectively at
a cash consideration of HK$70,002,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB61,630,000) for the set up of a
new manufacturing plant for production of washing
motors.

Foshan Huiao was a company indirectly controlled by
Mr. He Xiangjian, the controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, and
hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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The above transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 9 December 2008.

Continuing Connected Transactions
Discontinued

On 14 June 2007, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company) (“Midea Framework
Agreement 1”) which set out the basis upon which members
of the Group would sell to members of Midea Group
refrigerators, air-conditioners and semi-finished products
and materials and members of the Group would purchase
from members of Midea Group household appliances, semi-
finished products, materials and spare parts and
refrigerators and air-conditioners.

On 14 June 2007, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with Hefei Hualing Co., Ltd. (“Hefei
Hualing”, a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company owned as to 50.05% by the Group and as to
49.95% by Midea and hence a connected person of the
Company) (“Hefei Framework Agreement”) which set out
the basis upon which members of the Group would
purchase refrigerators from Hefei Hualing and sell
refrigerators, semi-finished products and spare parts to
Hefei Hualing.

On 30 October 2007, the Company and Midea entered into
a new framework agreement (“New Midea Framework
Agreement”) to revise the annual caps for the sale of air-
conditioners from the Group to Midea Group as set out in
the Midea Framework Agreement | for the three vyears
ending on 31 December 2009.

The Midea Framework Agreement | and the Hefei
Framework Agreement and the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 30 July 2007.
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The New Midea Framework Agreement was approved by
independent shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 26 November 2007.

Sale of finished goods by members of the Group to Midea
Group and Hefei Hualing from 1 January 2008 to 31 March
2008 under the Midea Framework Agreement |, the New
Midea Framework Agreement and the Hefei Framework
Agreement amounted to HK$498,745,000, which was
within the annual caps as set out in the relevant
announcements of the Company.

Purchase of finished goods, semi-finished goods, materials
and spare parts by members of the Group from Midea
Group and Hefei Hualing from 1 January 2008 to 31 March
2008 under the Midea Framework Agreement |, the New
Midea Framework Agreement and the Hefei Framework
Agreement amounted to HK$276,991,000, which was
within the annual caps as set out in the relevant
announcements of the Company.

The continuing connected transactions under the Midea
Framework Agreement |, the New Midea Framework
Agreement and the Hefei Framework Agreement have been
discontinued with effect from 31 March 2008 upon
completion of the restructuring of the Group.

Continuing

On 22 February 2008, the Company entered into the
framework agreement with Midea (“Midea Framework
Agreement 1I”) which set out the basis upon which
members of the Group would sell products to certain
members of Midea Group as well as purchase raw
materials through Midea Group during the period from 31
March 2008 to 31 December 2010.

The Midea Framework Agreement Il and the continuing
connected transactions contemplated thereunder were
approved by independent shareholders of the Company at
an extraordinary general meeting held on 18 March 2008.

EEEHRE

ARRBYURRER_-_ZEZTLF+—A
ZHARBERETZBRRERNRE Lk
FIRHIEZR W 3% o

T EENF—A—BE_ZEZEN\F=HA
=+—BHE AEBEKERRREE
WIERGZE —  ENERBELEE
EXRBEAENEBERGEEZHEER
X G 2 $H & %8 & 78 #5498,745,0007T -+ it
CHEBRARRBEAMGAE CFE L
BRZ A -

—ZEENF-A-HE_ZTTN\F=A
=+—BHE AEEKERARRIEE
MERWE —  ENERBAELA R
ERmEAZNEERAEEZRBH
Ram FERB DHEEHZ2RER
/%78 #6276,991,0007T * Lt FEBR AR
BAIBEAMAEZFRELRZA -

AEBEZTKREHRELR ER_TTNF=
AZ+—BRIEPETENERRGZE
MEMERBELASRERBZETZ

R-ZETZNF-_A-+=-B KA aHA
EWFTUERME(ENER G Z
ZD ERHINATEEZELE - R
TENF=ZA=+—RE-_ZFT—FF
+ZA=+—RHHH AEEKE QA
ZRENEBEETHKEARHEEER -
ERFEBAENEBEERME -

RABBIRRER -_TEZENF=A
TNBRETZERREIAE L #EE
MIEZR M — MHIB T HETT 2 AR




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Sale of motors and spare parts by members of the Group
to Midea Group for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to HK$2,096,609,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,862,208,000), which is within the 2008
annual cap of RMB2,170,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,443,143,000) as set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2008.

Purchase of semi-finished products, materials and spare
parts by members of the Group from Midea Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to
HK$852,988,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB757,623,000), which is within the 2008 annual cap of
RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,688,809,000) as set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 February 2008.

Details of the significant related party transactions entered
into by certain members of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2008 pursuant to the above-
mentioned agreements, which constituted connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the
Year and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms and in accordance with
the pricing policy of the Company;

(38) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the annual caps as set
out in the relevant published announcements.
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In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules,
the Board of Directors engaged the auditor of the Company
and perform certain factual finding procedures on the
above continuing connected transactions on a sample basis
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related
Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon
Procedures Regarding Financial Information” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has reported their factual findings on the agreed
procedures to the Board of Directors and confirmed that
for the year ended 31 December 2008, the continuing
connected transactions of the Group :

(1)  have been approved by the Board;

(2) are in accordance with the pricing policy of the
Company;

(8) have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements with respect to the transactions
referred to above in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-
competition deed in favour of the Company (“Non-
Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and other
members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not
engage in any business of the manufacturing and
distribution of motors and electronic and electric
components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on
by the Group which would directly or indirectly compete
with the business of the Group.
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(Continued)

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition
Deed, Midea has submitted to the Company the annual
declaration confirming that Midea and its associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) have complied with all the
provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the
year ended 31 December 2008 (“Declaration”). The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Declaration and are satisfied with the compliance by Midea
and its associates with the provisions of the Non-
competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-
competition Deed during the year ended 31 December
2008.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors and the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out
on pages 19 to 35 for the compliance with the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, the
Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained,
during the Year, sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Group is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CAIl Qiwu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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18 M % AN R

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BORKESSMEHA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WELLING HOLDING
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 223, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile  (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Welling Holding Limited
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 April 2009
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meBEEREBER

As at 31 December 2008
R-ZZEZENF+_A=+—H

Note
B 5

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use TE b N+ b 5P

rights 6
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 7
Investment properties wEME 8
Intangible assets BEEE 9
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSHEE 21
Prepayment for investments in & B & A 748 & 2B

associates 12
Prepayment for property, plant BT % - B /5 & 3% K18

and equipment 12
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 11
Trade and other receivables E 5 K H e U =k 12
Due from related companies JiE s FBE B N B FRIE 35(d)
Pledged bank deposits BHEMEITER 14
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED 15
Total assets BmEE
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves ERRREFEABGERAE

attributable to the R #E

Company’s equity holders
Share capital AR A 16
Other reserves H b & 17
Accumulated losses RETEE
Minority interests PERRER
Total equity R
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As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—H

2008

=S L%

HK$°000
BETT

127,436
571,345

22,410
7,887

82,463

22,392

833,933

243,888
929,579
1,074,328
61,020
PAVA VL

2,525,939
3,359,872

1,347,931
227,921
(805,210)

770,642

770,642

2007
—EE+HF
HK$’000
BT
Restated
ERdl

(Note 2.1)
(F3x2.1)

193,012
744,105
106,800

21,080

1,064,997

872,946
1,820,749
1,265,430

276,019

497,042

4,732,186
5,797,183

1,347,931
(152,003)
(978,602)

217,326
55,930

273,256



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meBEEREBER

As at 31 December 2008
RZTENF+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=
2008
—EEN\F
Note HK$’000
B 3E BET T
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 18 60,000
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEHAE 21 6,305
66,305
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and other payables g 5 R EAMER K 19 1,705,350
Due to related companies JE 1~ g Bt R R FRIB 35(d) 174,032
Derivative financial instruments TTEER T A 20 30,635
Current income tax liabilities BVHAFT SR B & 1,300
Borrowings B 18 611,608
Provision for warranty EmRRERE 22 =
2,522,925
Total liabilities BmeE 2,589,230
Total equity and liabilities RERaBEHEE 3,359,872
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (A% )FE 3,014
Total assets less current HMEERTBERE

liabilities

836,947

Cai Qiwu
E2HK

Director

EF

The notes on pages 71 to 223 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

Gao Fazhong

ik

Director

EF

_jB

=+-8

2007
—EELF
HK$’000
BT T
Restated
el

(Note 2.1)
(MF3E2.1)

3,310,494
1,334,057

5,209
801,164
73,0083
5,623,927
5,623,927
5,797,183

(791,741)

273,256

MREBETE22EB WAL BEHRE 2
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BALANCE SHEET

EEE/E/X

As at 31 December 2008
R-ZZEZENF+_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=
2008
—EENEF
Note HK$’000
B 5 BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 7 87
Investments in subsidiaries B ATIEE 10 4,517,215
4,517,302
Current assets RBEE

Prepayments and other
receivables

FEAS 3R R B At & R

12 1,346

Dividend receivable JE W iR 2 350,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeREESZEEY 15 2,149
353,495

Total assets BmEE 4,870,797
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves AATREREEA

attributable to the EERARG#E

Company’s equity holders
Share capital A% A 16 1,347,931
Other reserves B 17 3,414,179

Retained profit/(accumulated
losses)

REFE, (RFER)

106,094

Total equity

AR

4,868,204
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2007
—EETLF
HK$’000
BT T

125

125

202

2,688

2,890

3,015

472,599
595,407

(1,116,676)

(48,670)



BALANCE SHEET
EERMER

As at 31 December 2008
RZTENF+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2008 2007
—=% )5 BRI
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BT T LR
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables TEIRBA L EMmENR 19 2,593 51,685
Total liabilities “aE 2,593 51,685
Total equity and liabilities RERkaERE 4,870,797 3,015
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE (B )FHE 350,902 (48,795)
Total assets less current HEERRBER
liabilities 4,868,204 (48,670)

Cai Qiwu
E2HK

Director

EF

The notes on pages 71 to 223 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

Gao Fazhong

BB 8

Director

EBE
REE223BEZM T AP EREK Z
Gl

_jB
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e s R

For the year ended 31 December 2008
Bz —_ZZ)\F+_A=+—"HIFE

Note
B 5

Continuing operations: BEREER:
Revenue Uz 5
Cost of goods sold HE B mKA
Gross profit EF
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (B518) W — F 58 23
Selling and marketing costs 55 & & T 5 HE R R AR
Administrative expenses THRX
Operating profit &K E
Finance income & A 26
Finance costs Bl & B A 26
Finance (costs)/income — net BE (A), WA — F58 26
Profit before income tax 1B A 18 86 A0 F E
Income tax expense FriSH 2 27
Profit for the year from FEREERZ2FERNE

continuing operations
Discontinued operations: BARIEEEER
Profit for the year from BRI EEB 2

discontinued operations FEHMH 34
Profit for the year FEFHE
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Year ended
31 December
BZ+=-HA=+—H
FE

2008
—EEN\F
HK$000
BET R

5,193,278
(4,655,951)

537,327
(80,362)
(91,383)

(144,299)

221,283

8,240
(37,109)

(28,869)

192,414

(28,810)

163,604

32,575

196,179

2007
—ETLF
HK$’000
BT T
Restated
£l

(Note 2.1)
(Mt3E2.1)

4,644,992
(4,159,411)
485,581
6,287
(85,938)
(179,986)

225,944

35,725
(29,560)

6,165

232,109

(24,841)

207,268

21,703

228,971



ey ®
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
I’fﬁ" h% q&dﬁ%‘% ber 2008
BE-TTNEI At ALEE
Year ended

31 December

BmEt=A=+-8

LtFE
2008 2007
= LSS TR F
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 7 e T o CL e
Restated
ERdl
(Note 2.1)
(Mt5E2.1)
Attributable to: LT AL B4 :
Equity holders of the Company A GIRIERH A 196,877 224,385
Minority interests D BRI (698) 4,586
196,179 228,971
Earnings per share for profit ZXQATRERZFEAELIEE
from continuing operations REEBRFNBZ2BRE
attributable to the equity o AR BWI R
holders of the Company,
expressed in HK cents per
share
— basic and diluted — HEAR R 29 1.54
Earnings per share for profit ZAQATKREZHEAEMN
attributable to the equity MNEZzZERKRER
holders of the Company, L8 REW YR
expressed in HK cents per
share
— basic and diluted —HEARREE 29 1.66
Dividends B’ E 30 —
The notes on pages 71 to 223 are an integral part of these REBETE223BE 2T AT HHRE 2
financial statements. — & n e
RBERERAE 67
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZN\FFT_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

AARREREAEMN
Share Other Accumulated Minority
capital reserves losses interests Total
LEBRR
BA HEE RitE#E R &%
Note HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

i B®TT BMTT  BWTR BETR BET

Balance at 1 January R-ZBZ2LE

2007, as restated —B—Bz#&t
(E5) 2.1 1,344,041 (174,535) (1,190,028) 61,734 41,212

Profit for the year FEFE - - 224,385 4,586 228,971
Transfer to statutory R R F RS

reserves - 12,959 (12,959) - -
Dividends paid to minority A 8 R X 2 &

shareholders B — — — (2,124) (2,124)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A 34(b) - (3,321) - (8,266)  (11,587)
Translation difference EHEE - 8,647 - - 8,647
Employee share option EEREREE

scheme
— proceeds from shares  — ZE1TRR (D PR1S FXIAE

issued 16(a) 3,890 794 — — 4,684
— value of services — TRt RS 2 BE

provided 16(b) - 3,453 - — 3,453

Balance at 31 December R=—ZZF+ &
2007, as restated +=BA=+—8
2t (EF) 2.1 1,347,931 (152,003) (978,602) 55,930 273,256

Balance at 1 January R-ZZEENE

2008, as restated —HA—HBz#&&
(E3) 2.1 1,347,931  (152,008) (978,602) 55,930 273,256

Profit/(loss) for the year FEEFE (EEB) — — 196,877 (698) 196,179
Transfer to statutory BRI E RS

reserves - 23,485 (23,485) — —
Translation difference ERER - 225 - - 225
Disposal of the Disposed HEBRHESE

Group
— Disposal of subsidiaries — &M B A A 34(a) — (48,137) — (565,232)  (103,369)
— Deemed contribution —RERGEEZ

arising from the RIER B

Transaction 34(a) - 404,351 - — 404,351

Balance at 31 December R—ZZEN\F
2008 +=HA=+—H
k=33 1,347,931 227,921 (805,210) — 770,642

The notes on pages 71 to 223 are an integral part of these REYAE AW - X A
financial statements. —3Z 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_ZTZN\F+_A=+—BILFE

Year ended
31 December

Bz+=-HA=+—H

IEFE
2008 2007
—gE 5 EEEE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=2 e Tt L S
Restated
E]
Cash flows from operating KEEE 2
activities ReERe
Cash generated from operations KEELEZIR® 31(a) 137,696 267,325
Interest paid B FE (50,881) (565,602)
Interest received AL &R 10,390 45,988
Income tax paid BB H (34,116) (27,122)
Net cash generated from operating 484 HEhE 4+
activities BeFE 63,089 230,589
Cash flows from investing RETEHZ
activities RERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BEX
equipment B PAREPE] (152,906)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HENEE
plant and equipment Fr183 318 31(b) 21,708 36,409
Increase in construction-in-progress 7 3£ T 2 1 (89,867) (49,962
Payment for leasehold land and MHE & T i A
land use rights E-N (30,680) (89,810)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow for LEMBRARIZRE
disposal of subsidiaries G/ mAFE 34 (245,096) 22,623
Increase in prepayment for TERWE - BE REER
property, plant and equipment TR 3% A1 (22,392) —
Increase in prepayment for FEREBENRIRE
investments in associates FRIAHE BN (82,463) —
Increase in other non-current H M IERE)E BN
assets (73) -
Receipts of government grants W BY R T 7 B 23 1,413 4,235
Net cash used in investing RETHMAZ
activities W& FHE GEERYE))  (229,411)

BEERAERAT 069
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
Bz —_ZZ)\F+_A=+—"HIFE

Year ended
31 December

BET=A=+-8

ItHFE
2008 2007
—E2T)\F g
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B3 e Tt L S
Restated
gl
Cash flows from financing METE 2
activities HeERE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary 217 % @X
shares Fr 1% 58 4,684
Dividend paid to minority ) > 8% R S A
shareholders 2 IR E = (2,124)
Proceeds from borrowings B SR 704,225 870,203
Repayment of borrowings BEEER CEEERRN (1,538,640)
Decrease in due to related JE < BB 2 R FE
companies Ve (230,250)
Decrease in due from related JiE U B Bt 2 B 5RIB
companies B 1,018,464
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 #1717 3k
DA 55,256
Net cash generated from financing BIEEHELEZ
activities WEFHE 315,972 177,593
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BHE2RRELZEY
and cash equivalents GRD) #&inEEE (279,918) 178,771
Cash and cash equivalents at FUZzHEES R
beginning of the year BEEEW 15 497,042 318,271
Cash and cash equivalents at FERZ2RER
end of the year REZEEY 15 217,124 497,042

The notes on pages 71 to 223 are an integral part of these REBETE223B 2 M ALTBKHER 2
financial statements. — & e
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General Information

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 23 November 2007, the Company and Welling
Electric Holding (Cayman lIslands) Limited (now known
as Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited) (the
“Vendor”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Midea Group
Co. Ltd. (*Midea”), the Company’s ultimate holding
company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to: (a) acquire from the Vendor
the entire issued share capital of Welling Holding (BVI)
Limited (the “Welling”); (b) dispose of the Company’s
entire interest in each of China Refrigeration Industry
Co., Ltd., Hualing Technology Limited, Hualing (Far
East) Limited, and Hualing (Guangzhou) Electrical
Appliances Co., Ltd., (collectively the “Disposed
Companies”) to the Vendor; (c) assign the Company’s
right to certain net receivables due from the Disposed
Companies and their subsidiaries to the Vendor; and (d)
issue the consideration shares to the Vendor
(collectively the “Transaction”).

On 25 February 2008, the Company dispatched a
circular related to the Transaction. Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at an Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 18 March 2008, the
Transaction was approved by the independent
shareholders.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

1

General information (Continued)

Upon completion (the “Completion”) of the Transaction
on 31 March 2008, the Company: (i) disposed of the
Disposed Companies and their respective subsidiaries
(together, the “Disposed Group”); (i) acquired Welling
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Welling Group”); (iii)
allotted and issued approximately 8,753,323,000
consideration shares to the Vendor; and (iv) assigned
the Company’s right to net receivables due from the
Disposed Companies and their subsidiaries amounted
to approximately HK$876,124,000 to the Vendor.
Thereafter, the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) has become a manufacturer and distributor
of air-conditioning motors, washing motors and
electronic and electric components in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas.

The principal activities of the Disposed Group were
the manufacturing, distribution and sale of household
electrical appliances, which include air-conditioners,
refrigerators and mini-refrigerators.

Given that the Company and the Vendor are both
indirect subsidiaries of Midea and under common
control of Midea before and after the Transaction, the
Company applied the principles of merger accounting,
as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” (“HKAG 5”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
in preparing these financial statements of the Group.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at an
Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held
on 18 March 2008 and as approved by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong, the English name of the
Company was changed from “Hualing Holdings
Limited” to “Welling Holding Limited”, and the Chinese
name of the Company was changed from “EZ £ B A
RAR]" to “BEZERAER AR with effect from 15
April 2008.

Welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHmRHE ()

1

2.1

General information (Continued)
The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2008 are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”"), which is different from the
presentation currency of the Group’s interim
condensed consolidated financial statements for the
period ended 30 June 2008 of Renminbi as the
directors consider this presentation provides more
useful and relevant financial information for its current
and potential investors.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These accounting policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs”) under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties and derivatives
financial instruments.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI ERAR MR

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The directors, having considered the current operation
and business plan and capital/investment commitment
(Note 33) of the Group as well as the available
banking facilities, are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to enable it to
operate as a going concern. Therefore, the
consolidated financial statements are prepared on
going concern basis. For further details on the Group’s
management on liquidity risk, please refer to Note
3.1(c).

These consolidated financial statements have also
been prepared using the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. These
consolidated financial statements include the financial
position, results and cash flows of the companies
comprising the Group as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the year, or since
their respective dates of incorporation/establishment.
For companies acquired from (or disposed of to) a
third party during the year, they would be included in
(or excluded from) the consolidated financial
statements of the Group from the date of that
acquisition (or disposal). Comparative figures as at 31
December 2007 and for the year ended 31 December
2007 have been presented on the same basis.

There is no gain or loss from the Transaction because
the resulting differences are regarded as distribution to
the equity holders of the Company and debited to the
equity of the Group. As a result, the accumulated
losses of the Disposed Group of approximately
HK$1,216,807,000 up to 31 March 2008 are not
affected by any disposal gain or loss, and are
included in the accumulated losses attributable to
equity holders of the Company as at 31 December
2008. The deemed distribution arising from the
Transaction of approximately HK$3,219,525,000 (Note
17(d)) was debited to the equity of the Group.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHmRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements also include
the assets, liabilities and results of operation of the
Disposed Group which were under common control of
Midea before and after the Transaction. The Company
disposed of the Disposed Group after the Completion
of the Transaction. In accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” issued by the HKICPA, the results and
cash flows of the operations of the Disposed Group
have been presented as discontinued operations. The
comparative figures in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated cash flow statement were
restated to reflect the disposal of Disposed Group
accordingly (Note 34).

The following are reconciliations of the effects arising
from the common control combination and the
disposal of the Disposed Group on the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2007, consolidated
income statement and consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e MR ERMEE ()
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEESTHERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REBLEXE (F)
(@ The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 @ RZEZELtF+-_A=+-—
December 2007: HzimeaEERBER:

Amount Merger Elimination

previously of the of the
reported Welling intercompany Restated
(Audited) Group balance (Audited)
RERE
tz&€8E HEER A FE =]
(RE®) =& ff ERYEHE (BREX)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

BETIT BETT BETIT AB¥TT
(i) (ii (i)

Total current assets BREEE 1,802,254 2,973,800 (43,868) 4,732,186
Total assets BEE 2,370,637 3,470,414 (43,868) 5,797,183
Total current liabilities BEHBE 2,718,864 2,848,931 (43,868) 5,523,927
Total liabilities wmaEE 2,718,864 2,848,931 (43,868) 5,523,927
Total equity e (348,227) 621,483 — 273,256

76  Weling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
= AN = =)
FREMBHRRME (F)
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEESTTHERBE (&)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEBEZE (FE)
(b) The consolidated income statement for the year by Bz _ZTZT+F+ - A
ended 31 December 2007: =t+—HEFEZGZE KR
*x:
Amount Merger Disposal
previously of the of the
reported Welling Disposed Restated
(Audited) Group Group (Audited)
LR E
28 HEEHR & 55
(RRER) E&6 CHEEE (BRFEFXR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETIT BETT BETIT ABETT
(i) (if) (iv)
Continuing operations: BFEREXEK .
Revenues W= 3,589,686 4,644,992 (3,589,686) 4,644,992
(Loss)/profit for the year BEREEB 2FE
from continuing operations (&), F|/H (65,001) 274,125 (11,856) 207,268
Discontinued operations: T #& I Q& %7 -
Profit from discontinued AR EE e T
operations (Note 34) Z FE (B 3E34) — 9,847 11,856 21,703
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BE) MB (65,001) 283,972 — 228,971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BRKRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2
policies (Continued)

TESTHHRERME (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HmBEE (FE)
(c) The consolidated cash flow statement for the 0 BHZZz_ZTZT+F+ - A
year ended 31 December 2007: ST+ —HEFEZREAERSE
MBI
Amount Merger
previously of the
reported Welling Restated
(Audited) Group (Audited)
PLEsRE
tze28 HEESK 55|
(RE*X) EEH (KER)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT ABA¥TrT BETT
(i) (ii)
Net cash generated from  &KZEBELS 2R S FE
operating activities 167,985 62,604 230,589
Net cash used in investing & EZEMA 2R & FE
activities (128,551) (100,860) (229,411)
Net cash (used in)/ BMEES (FTR)  ELX2
generated from financing IREFERE
activities (36,360) 213,953 177,593

()  The amount originally stated by the Group
are the same as those published in the
Group’s audited financial statements as at
31 December 2007, representing information
of the Disposed Group and the Company.

78  Weling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHRRHE ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(Continued)

(©

(i)

The financial information of the Welling
Group as at 31 December 2007 and for the
year ended 31 December 2007 are included
using the principles of merger accounting
as prescribed in HKAG 5 as stated above.

On 30 April 2007, the Welling Group
disposed of all of its equity interest in
Jiangsu Qingjiang Motor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd. (previously known as Huaian Welling-
Qingjiang Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd.)
and its subsidiary (collectively as “Qingjiang”)
to Midea and Midea International
Corporation Company Ltd., a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Midea. The main
business of Qingjiang was manufacturing
and distributing industrial motors. The
operating loss of Qingjiang for the four
months ended 30 April 2007 was
approximately HK$2,239,000 and the

disposal gain was approximately
HK$12,086,000. The total amount
HK$9,847,000 has been included in the

profit from discontinued operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December
2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHRRHE ()

2

2.1

80

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

(Continued)

(i) (Continued)
The financial statements of the Welling
Group originally stated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
is retranslated into HK$ with the following
exchange rates:

— assets and liabilities are translated at
the closing rate as at 31 December
2007 of HK$1=RMB0.9360;

— income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rate for the year
ended 31 December 2007 of
HK$1=RMBO0.9710 (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

— movements of equity are translated at
the rate prevailing on the transaction
dates.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
mEMBEmRMmE (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(¢) (Continued)
(i)  The intercompany receivable and payable
balances between the Disposed Group and
the Welling Group entities are eliminated.

(iv) The audited revenue and profit related to
the operating result of the Disposed Group
for the year ended 31 December 2007 are
presented under “profit from discontinued
operations” as required by HKFRS 5 as
mentioned above.

i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHRRHE ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

()  Standards, amendment and interpretations
effective in 2008

HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement’, amendment
on reclassification of financial assets permits
reclassification of certain financial assets out
of the held-for-trading and available-for-sale
categories if specified conditions are meet.
The related amendment to HKFRS 7,
‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’,
introduces disclosure requirements with
respect to financial assets reclassified out of
the held-for-trading and available-for-sale
categories. The amendment is effective
prospectively from 1 July 2008. This
amendment does not have any impact on
the Group’s financial statements, as the
Group has not reclassified any financial
assets.

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2008 but not relevant to the Group

HK(FRIC) — Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 — Group
and treasury share transactions’

HK(FRIC) —
arrangement’

Int 12, ‘Service concession

HK(FRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHRRHE ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 or later periods, but the Group
has not early adopted them:

HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of financial
statements’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
The revised standard will prohibit the
presentation of items of income and
expenses (that is, ‘non-owner changes in
equity’) in the statement of changes in
equity, requiring ‘non-owner changes in
equity’ to be presented separately from
owner changes in equity. All non-owner
changes in equity will be required to be
shown in a performance statement, but
entities can choose whether to present one
performance statement (the statement of
comprehensive income) or two statements
(the consolidated income statement and
statement of comprehensive income). Where
entities restate or reclassify comparative
information, they will be required to present
a restated balance sheet as at the
beginning comparative period in addition to
the current requirement to present balance
sheets at the end of the current period and
comparative period. The Group will apply
HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1 January 2009. It
is likely that both the consolidated income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income will be presented as performance
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
S A e =1
FREMBHRRHME (B
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEGHHEME (B)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEE (F)

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (i) i 7K 43X H K 7E N 2E [ 1E P
existing standards that are not yet effective and Bz ER - 1 A ZER 2 (5
have not been early adopted by the Group FIRAFE (&)

(Continued)
. HKAS 23 (Revised), ‘Borrowing costs’ BB e R E235 (&

84

(effective from 1 January 2009). The
amendment requires an entity to capitalise
borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for use or sale)
as part of the cost of that asset. The option
of immediately expensing those borrowing
costs will be removed. The Group will apply
HKAS 23 (Revised) from 1 January 2009
but it is not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHRRHE ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective from
1 July 2009). The revised standard requires
the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity
if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is
lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value and a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss. The Group
will apply HKAS 27 (Revised) prospectively
to transactions with non-controlling interests

from 1 January 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Presentation’, and HKAS 1
(Amendment), ‘Presentation of financial

‘Puttable financial

instruments and obligations arising on

liquidation’ (effective from 1 January 2009).

The amended standards require entities to

classify puttable financial instruments and

instruments, or components of instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to
deliver to another party a pro rata share of
the net assets of the entity only on
liguidation as equity, provided the financial
instruments have particular features and
meet specific conditions. The Group will
apply the HKAS 32 (Amendment) and HKAS
1(Amendment) from 1 January 2009, but it
is not expected to have any impact on the

statements’

Group’s financial statements.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment), ‘First time adoption
of HKFRS’ and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective from
1 January 2009). The amended standard
allows first-time adopters to use a deemed
cost of either fair value or the carrying
amount under previous accounting practice
to measure the initial cost of investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates in the separate financial
statements. The amendment also removes
the definition of the cost method from
HKAS 27 and replaces it with a requirement
to present dividends as income in the
separate financial statements of the investor.
The Company will apply HKAS 27
(Amendment) prospectively from 1 January
2009 in its separate financial statements.
This amendment is not relevant to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
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88

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Share-based
payment’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
The amended standard deals with vesting
conditions and cancellations. It clarifies that
vesting conditions are service conditions
and performance conditions only. Other
features of a share-based payment are not
vesting conditions. As such these features
would need to be included in the grant
date fair value for transactions with
employees and others providing similar
services, that is, these features would not
impact the number of awards expected to
vest or valuation thereof subsequent to
grant date. All cancellations, whether by the
entity or by other parties, should receive
the same accounting treatment. The Group
will apply HKFRS 2 (Amendment) from 1
January 2009, but it is not expected to
have a material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

Welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14,
‘Segment reporting’, and requires a
‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented on the
same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The Group will apply
HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009, but it is
not expected to have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements, as the Group
has already been using principles, which are
consistent with HKFRS 8, in presenting the
segment information of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business combinations’
(effective from 1 July 2009). The revised
standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations,
some significant changes. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to be
recorded at fair value at the acquisition
date, with contingent payments classified as
debt subsequently re-measured through the
consolidated income statement. There is a
choice on an acquisition by acquisition
basis to measure the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-
related costs should be expensed. The
Group will apply HKFRS 3 (Revised)
prospectively to all business combinations

from 1 January 2010.

Welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()
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21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HK(FRIC) — Int 16 ‘Hedges of a net
investment in a foreign operation’ (effective
from 1 October 2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 16
clarifies the accounting treatment in respect
of net investment hedging. This includes the
fact that net investment hedging relates to
differences in functional currency not
presentation currency, and hedging
instruments may be held anywhere in the
Group. The requirements of HKAS 21, ‘The
effects of changes in foreign exchange
rates’, do apply to the hedged item. The
Group will apply HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 from 1
January 2009. It is not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRHE (&
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2.1

92

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS

published in October 2008

HKAS 1 (Amendment), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective from 1
January 2009). The amendment clarifies
that some rather than all financial assets
and liabilities classified as held for trading in
accordance with HKAS 39, ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
are examples of current assets and liabilities
respectively. The Group will apply the HKAS
1 (Amendment) from 1 January 2009. It is
not expected to have an impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()
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21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

» HKAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’

(effective from 1 January 2009).

— The amendment clarifies that a plan
amendment that results in a change in the
extent to which benefit promises are
affected by future salary increases
curtailment, while an amendment that
changes benefits attributable to past service
gives rise to a negative past service cost if
it results in a reduction in the present value

of the defined benefit obligation.

— The definition of return on plan assets has
been amended to state that
administration costs are deducted
calculation of return on plan assets only to
the extent that such costs have been
excluded from measurement of the defined

benefit obligation.

— The distinction between short term and long
term employee benefits will be based on
whether benefits are due to be settled
within or after 12 months of employee

service being rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
S A = =}
mEMBHmERME (F)
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEGHEBREME (B)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 wEEE (F)

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to (i) 7 AR AR A R AR E F R
existing standards that are not yet effective and Bz ER -« 1 A ZER 2 (5
have not been early adopted by the Group FIRAFE (&)

(Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

» HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1 January 2009).
definition of borrowing costs has been
amended so that interest expense

calculated using the effective

method defined in HKAS 39 ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’.
This eliminates the inconsistency of terms
between HKAS 39 and HKAS 23. The
Group will apply the HKAS 23 (Amendment)
prospectively to the capitalisation of
borrowing costs on qualifying assets from 1

January 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation’ and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’) (effective from 1
January 2009). An investment in associate
is treated as a single asset for the purposes
of impairment testing and any impairment
loss is not allocated to specific assets
included within the investment, for example,
goodwill. Reversals of impairment are
recorded as an adjustment to the
investment balance to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the associate
increases. The Group will apply the HKAS
28 (Amendment) to impairment tests related
to investment in associates and any related
impairment losses from 1 January 2009.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of
assets’ (effective from 1 January 2009).
Where fair value less costs to sell is
calculated on the basis of discounted cash
flows, disclosures equivalent to those for
value-in-use calculation should be made.
The Group will apply the HKAS 36
(Amendment) and provide the required
disclosure where applicable for impairment
tests from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’
(effective from 1 January 2009). A
prepayment may only be recognised in the
event that payment has been made in
advance of obtaining right of access to
goods or receipt of services. It is not
expected to have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 389 (Amendment), ‘Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement’
(effective from 1 January 2009).

This amendment clarifies that it is possible
for there to be movements into and out of
the fair value through profit or loss category
where a derivative commences or ceases to
qualify as a hedging instrument in cash flow
or net investment hedge.

The definition of financial asset or financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss as
it relates to items that are held for trading
is also amended. This clarifies that a
financial asset or liability that is part of a
portfolio of financial instruments managed
together with evidence of an actual recent
pattern of short-term profit-taking is
included in such a portfolio on initial
recognition.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKICPA’'s improvements

— The current guidance on designating and
documenting hedges states that a hedging
instrument needs to involve a party external
to the reporting entity and cites a segment
as an example of a reporting entity. This
means that in order for hedge accounting
to be applied at segment level,
requirements for hedge accounting are
currently required to be met by the

The amendment

removes this requirement so that HKAS 39

‘Operating

which requires disclosure for

segments to be based on information
reported to the chief operating decision

applicable segment.

is consistent with HKFRS 8,
segments’

maker.

to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBBRME (&
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i) Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

When remeasuring the carrying amount of a
debt instrument on cessation of fair value
hedge accounting, the amendment clarifies
that a revised effective interest rate
(calculated at the date fair value hedge
accounting ceases) are used.

The Group will apply the HKAS 39
(Amendment) from 1 January 2009. It is not
expected to have an impact on the Group’s
consolidated income statement.

100 Welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

» HKFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’
(and consequential amendment to HKFRS 1,
‘First-time adoption’) (effective from 1 July
2009). The amendment clarifies that all of a
subsidiary’s assets and liabilities are
classified as held for sale if a partial
disposal sale plan results in loss of control,
and relevant disclosure should be made for
this subsidiary if the definition of a

discontinued operation is

consequential amendment to HKFRS 1
states that these amendments are applied
prospectively from the date of transition to
HKFRSs. The Group will apply the HKFRS
5 (Amendment) prospectively to all partial

disposals of subsidiaries from 1
2010.

2

21

TESTHHRERME (&)

mREE (K)

(i)

faf 2K 23X A K AR IE FFE P
RN ER - BB ER 2 E
TR 2 (&)

EBEHBLAER T
FAETARGYES
SR ER PR
()

&SRS £ R 55
(BRI HELRE 23
RBEENDRIEEE
E¥BI(REBEBH B R
EXEBIF5R (IR R |
ZHEEBIF)(BEZZTE
NELA—BREER) -
S IEE TR - WD
HEHETEZMEX
THE - AIMB AR Z
FMEEERBEYRE
EFELE TEFA
ERIECEEBEEZ
BRT LM B QA
EHAEEEE - HE S
B RS R R SB15R VB
ZHBIERTYIR  E
EIHBEEREMNB
HwAELEA Z A BEK
A AKEERKB =T —
TE—A—BERFAE
B LEMBRRIKA
&SR s £ R 55
(1BETA) »

pEZzRaRA27 101
—ETNEER



" g

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)~ Standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group

(Continued)

. HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

» There are a number of minor amendments
‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’, HKAS 8, ‘Accounting policies,
changes in accounting estimates and
errors’, HKAS 10, ‘Events after the balance
sheet date’, HKAS 18, ‘Revenue’ and HKAS
34, ‘Interim financial reporting’ which are
not addressed above. These amendments
are unlikely to have an impact on the
Group’s financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detalil.

to HKFRS 7,

(iv)  Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not

relevant for the Group’s operations

The following interpretations and amendments to
existing standards have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later
periods but are not relevant for the Group’s

operations:

. HKAS 39 (amendment)

particular situations.

102 Waelling Holding Limited

Annual Report 2008

‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’
— ‘Eligible hedged items’ (effective from 1
July 2009). This amendment is to clarify
how the principles that determine whether a
hedged risk or portion of cash flows is
eligible for designation shall be applied in
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(v)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HK(FRIC) — Int 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effective from 1 July 2008).
HK(RFIC) — Int 13 clarifies that where

goods or services are sold together with a
customer loyalty incentive (for example,
loyalty points or free products), the
arrangement is a multiple-element
arrangement and the consideration
receivable from the customer is allocated
between the components of the
arrangement using fair values. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 13 is not relevant to the Group’s
operations because none of the Group’s
companies operate any loyalty programmes.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15, ‘Agreements for
construction of real estates’ (effective from
1 January 2009) supercedes HK(IFRIC) —
Int 3, ‘Revenue — Pre-completion contracts
for the sale of development properties’.
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 clarifies whether HKAS
18, ‘Revenue’ or IAS 11, ‘Construction
contracts’ should be applied to particular
transactions. It is likely to result in HKAS 18
being applied to a wider range of
transactions. HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 is not
relevant to the Group’s operations as all
revenue transactions are accounted for
under HKAS 18 and not HKAS 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 — ‘Distributions of non-
cash assets to owners’ (effective from 1
July 2009).

This interpretation applies to non-reciprocal
distributions of non-cash assets (or with a
cash alternative) except for common control
transactions and clarifies that:

a dividend payable shall be recognised
when the dividend is appropriately
recognised and is no longer at the
discretion of the entity.

the dividend payable shall be measured at
the fair value of the assets to be distributed.

the difference between the dividend paid
and the carrying amount of the assets
distributed shall be recognised in profit or
loss.

104  welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008

HKAS 16 (Amendment), Property, plant and
equipment (and consequential amendment
to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows)
(effective from 1 January 2009). Entities
whose ordinary activities comprise renting
and subsequently selling assets present
proceeds from the sale of those assets as
revenue and should transfer the carrying
amount of the asset to inventories when the
asset becomes held for sale. A
consequential amendment to HKAS 7 states
that cash flows arising from purchase, rental
and sale of those assets are classified as
cash flows from operating activities. The
amendment will not have an impact on the
Group’s operations because none of the
group companies’ ordinary activities
comprise renting and subsequently selling
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(v)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 20 (Amendment), ‘Accounting for
government grants and disclosure of
government assistance’ (effective from 1
January 2009). The benefit of a below-
market rate government loan is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount in accordance with HKAS 39,
‘Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement’ and the proceeds received
with the benefit accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 20. The amendment
will not have an impact on the Group’s
operations as there are no loans received
from the government.

HKAS 27 (Amendment), ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ (effective from
1 January 2009). Where an investment in a
subsidiary that is accounted for under
HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition
and measurement’, is classified as held for
sale under HKFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations’,
HKAS 39 would continue to be applied.
The amendment will not have an impact on
the Group’s operations because it is the
Group’s policy for an investment in
subsidiary to be recorded at cost in the
standalone accounts of each entity.

106 Welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(v)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 28 (Amendment), ‘Investments in
associates’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation” and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’) (effective from 1
January 2009). Where an investment in
associate is accounted for in accordance
with  HKAS 39, ‘Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’ only certain
rather than all disclosure requirements in
HKAS 28 need to be made in addition to
disclosures required by HKAS 32, ‘Financial
Instruments: Presentation’ and HKFRS 7,
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’. The
amendment will not have an impact on the
Group’s operations because it is the
Group’s policy for an investment in an
associate to be equity accounted in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 29 (Amendment), ‘Financial reporting
in hyperinflationary economies’ (effective
from 1 January 2009). The guidance has
been amended to reflect the fact that a
number of assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value rather than historical
cost. The amendment will not have an
impact on the Group’s operations, as none
of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in
hyperinflationary economies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

21

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 31 (Amendment), ‘Interests in joint
ventures (and consequential amendments to
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7) (effective from 1
January 2009). Where an investment in joint
venture is accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, only certain rather than all
disclosure requirements in HKAS 31 need
to be made in addition to disclosures
required by HKAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation” and HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’. The amendment
will not have an impact on the Group’s
operations as there are no interests held in
joint ventures.

HKAS 38 (Amendment), ‘Intangible assets’
(effective from 1 January 2009). The
amendment deletes the wording that states
that there is ‘rarely, if ever’ support for use
of a method that results in a lower rate of
amortisation than the straight line method.
The amendment will not currently have an
impact on the Group’s operations as all
intangible assets are amortised using the
straight line method.

108 Waelling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008

TESTHHRERME (&)

mBLEXE (&)

] 7R £ 2K H 522K 52 8] 5% 7 A

i HITER 2 BREET
(%)

EERHBAER T
TN\E+ARGYHES
B 75 o & 0 A2 B
()

FB G ERIER (&
IR aEERER
(R BB G ERIFE32
HRBRBYHRSE ER
PR HRERT ) (A=
ETNF-A—HEL
M)A abERETS
RIBEE B ST ERF39
BAKR BRREALES
FHERIERE (@ T
H: 20 RBBMBR
FEAEIE BT
B WEMERWEIN
ERBREBSGTER
31 2 /T (M k2
) WEREFLRE -
HRASETERES
L EEm o WULIAE
AIHAREXRBITESY
@,

BB ST HERE38H (&
IR EEEE (B =
TTENF—-—H—BRE
)b EABETMIBR T
MR (A ZFERA
BEREUINFT EZEFES
HEREzERM - AR
FEEREEEHTRE
ROLBESY M BB RT
BERSAEEERYE

S
TE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.1

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(v)

Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

HKAS 40 (Amendment), ‘Investment
property’ (and consequential amendments
to HKAS 16) (effective from 1 January
2009). Property that is under construction
or development for future use as investment
property is within the scope of HKAS 40.
Where the fair value model is applied, such
property is, therefore, measured at fair
value. However, where fair value of
investment property under construction is
not reliably measurable, the property is
measured at cost until the earlier of the
date construction is completed and the
date at which fair value becomes reliably
measurable. The amendment will not have
an impact on the Group’s operations, as no
investment properties are held by the
Group’s continuing operations.

HKAS 41 (Amendment), ‘Agriculture’ (effective
from 1 January 2009). It requires the use of
a market-based discount rate where fair
value calculations are based on discounted
cash flows and the removal of the
prohibition on taking into account biological
transformation when calculating fair value.
The amendment will not have an impact on
the Group’s operations as no agricultural
activities are undertaken.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) Interpretations and amendments to existing
standards that are not yet effective and not
relevant for the Group’s operations (Continued)

o HKICPA’'s improvements to HKFRS
published in October 2008 (Continued)

» The minor amendments to HKAS 20,
‘Accounting for government grants and
disclosure of government assistance’, HKAS
29, ‘Financial reporting in hyperinflationary
economies’, HKAS 40, ‘Investment property’
and HKAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, which are not
addressed above. These amendments will
not have an impact on the Group’s
operations as described above.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2008.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

110 Wwaelling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. ldentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any
minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated income statement
(Note 2.7).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
in the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (Note 2.8). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
MEMBHERHME (F)

2

2.2

2.3

2.4

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group that are recorded in the
consolidated income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. A
geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in
other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is
different from the Company’s functional currency
of Renminbi.

112  welling Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.4

2.5

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.5

Summary of significant accounting 2 FESTTHESE (&)
policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 YWE -BEKRRE (&)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is ME - BMELBEGEZITEFEANUT
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate HeEt A ERAFEHEK RIZE G E
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful NEERREENE

lives, as follows:

Estimated useful lives

& & 7T 62 A F 1
Buildings:
BF:
— Decorations 3 years
— % 3F
— Factories, offices and others 10-30 years
— I PAERHEM 10-304F
Plant and machinery 10-20 years
T 5 Bt 2s 10-204F
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
_E 5-10%F
Electronic and other equipment 3-5 years
BT R EAMEE 3-5%F
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are BEZ TJ ﬁ% T“f B & Al & A F 5 E
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance 5@ % HEITRTREES
sheet date. EITHE *R o
Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of ERIREDEHEZME  BFE K&
construction incurred and machinery pending BREGLE ZKEFMSIEBZE
installation plus interest capitalised up to date of BERAY I EXT BRI 2EXR
completion of the construction of property, plant and EREREEMBEREE &L
equipment less any impairment losses. No provision BATHE BEEHBEETK K
for depreciation is made on construction in progress AEERRL ERITERTRI
until such time and relevant assets are completed and EERACARENSDEREE
put into use. Construction-in-progress is reclassified to BRI 2 BENRRE-

the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.5

2.6

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’'s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’ in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group’s companies, is classified as investment

property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of
the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance
lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.6

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
the light of current market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect
of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised
in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill
is tested for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not
yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivable, available-for-sale
and held to maturity. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determine the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. Currently, the Group only have
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
seling in the short term. Derivatives are
also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.1Classification (Continued)

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash and
cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet
(Notes 2.12 and 2.13).

2.9.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’, in the period in which they
arise.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets in
impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered as an indicator that
the securities are impaired. Impairment testing of
trade and other receivables is described in Note
2.12.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement within ‘other gains/
(losses) — net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M R

2

211

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises design costs, raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement within administrative
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M R

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax, if it is not
accounted for, arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008

217

TESTHHRERME (&)

B RIELE BB
AHEAZHRAERXBEREHLE
SERIA - IR AR & U st &k
R EEERGEESTRER AR
BREERIRIN - EULBERT, HIA
INERE 2 RERR o

EMERTXEREARAR LA
B A A& R EEERTIA
ZERNEEBERMAEELER
2 R EDIETE - 2 E R E A
MBEDIRBRRARZITNEH
AHE R R 2 AR - WHEBERIBR
TREBEFAMAR RS HE N2
T 3K AR E $BE 4

BELEFSRABBEEREERA
Bz MERELRE Y EREMT
REERCEREZETUER R
- HEREMSHRREEZHAE H A
e RZHREREEXEBIE
MERXRZKIZESTHTHERM
B RINERRER o« BT PTIF B A
REHEHEBMHNELEBMILTE
HREBRMEEELEMEHEE K
EERELEMESHAERER 2K
R (RSEP)) METE -

i B 1% FE SR B KB A] g 85 AT &)
RAZEREZR HTERAELEME
MEE °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefits obligation
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
make contributions to a state-sponsored defined
contribution scheme for the Group’s local staff
on a monthly basis pursuant to laws of the PRC
and relevant regulations issued by local social
security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the entity
receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market service
and performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

126 Welling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008

2 FESTHHRME &)

218 EE®A (&)

®)

UG 2Bz

AEEHT - RILEDEE
B <& 2518 &
e EREREBEHMRSEIL
AAREE 2 BARTEA (BBK
BIERHE -SERERHER
BmRTEREZRFET
BAAFAX XHBEETRE
S2ROREERBZAYE
BE TEEETMIETSR
B M ERERAE BRI (H20
BANEN HEBRAERER
RiEERBEREELRE) Z
FE-FMERBHRTER
EEBEMA T 8RB RKE
BEAZBERA - XHEATHE
%A B B R RE AR Y X B
B A - P A 38 T B IR 1T
AER - NEGEER BERS
RBIENGEB R ETH
MErFRRA TRE 2B RE
HE - UREE WS R AME
REBRKRGEARF2EE
(InAE) - I H R (FHES

o

ERREETER 2 KA
Z PR EIE MBI E & E
163X 5 P 7R ) 15 5 AR (T
B)REhEES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.

2.19 Provisions

Provision for warranty is recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probably that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described below. The amount of revenue
is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved.
The Group bases its estimates on historical results
taking into consideration the type of customer, the
type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@) Sales of finished goods and raw materials
Sales of finished goods and raw materials are
recognised when a group entity has delivered
products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(@)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Operating lease rental income
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the lease.

2.21 Operating lease

(@)

(b)

Leases (as the leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases (as the lessor)

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the balance sheet
based on the nature of the asset. Lease income
is recognised over the term of the lease on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

The Group exposes to foreign
exchange risks as certain portion of
business activities are denominated in
foreign currencies, primarily with
respect to the Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”), United States dollar (“USD”)
and Euro (“EUR”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

To manage their foreign exchange risks
arising from future commercial
transactions, entities in the Group
enter into forward contracts, transacted
with the commercial banks. The
directors are of the opinion that the
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
risk is manageable.

At 31 December 2008, if RMB has
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have
been HK$2,248,000 lower/higher (2007:
HK$2,966,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/
gains on translation of HK$-
denominated trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables
and due from/to related companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

REMBHRRME (F)

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(0

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, if RMB has
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the USD with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have
been HK$15,065,000 (2007:
HK$13,688,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD-
denominated trade and other
receivables and trade and other
payables and due from/to related
companies.

At 31 December 2008, if RMB has
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the EUR with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit of continuing
operation for the year would have
been HK$4,915,000 (2007:
HK$3,480,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of EUR-
denominated trade and other
receivables and trade and other
payables and due from/to related
companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BRKRME (F)

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

As the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
mainly from long-term borrowings. The
directors are of the opinion this risk is
not material as at 31 December 2008.

At 31 December 2008, if interest rates
on long-term borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit
of the continuing operation for the
year would have been HK$13,000
(2007: Nil) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense
on floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity
price risk, mainly due
fluctuations in prices of copper and
aluminium, which are key raw materials
to the Group’s products of
continuing operations. The price risk
due to copper and aluminium
the derivatives
market, and through certain clause in
contracts with our customers to enable
the Group to have the flexibility to
pass the increases
costs to our customers.

reduced through

At 31 December 2008, if the copper
and aluminium price had been 5%
higher/lower with other variables held
constant, the pre-tax profit of the
continuing operation for the year would
have been of HK$1,143,000 (2007:
representing the
change in fair value of copper and
aluminium derivatives at the balance

Nil) higher/lower,

sheet date.

The Group is not exposed to equity

securities price risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. Credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, derivative financial instruments,
due from related parties and trade and
other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalent, pledged
bank deposits and derivative financial
instruments, management manages the
credit risk by transacting with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions.

For trade and other receivables and due
from related parties, the credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history
and other factors. Individual credit limits are
set based on the assessment of the credit
quality. Given the constant repayment
history, the directors are of the opinion that
the risk of default by these counterparties is
low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HXREKRER (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEMEE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) nEB &= /ELE
Liquidity risk management includes nBECREREEBESE
maintaining sufficient cash balance, the BrRRaEs NasEe
availability of funding from an adequate = E gl & EH E 5/] Eew &
amount of committed credit facilities and 3R i T 35 L B °
the ability to close out market positions.
The table below analyses the Group’s TR AEEREEH
financial liabilities that will be settled on a BRTHEZEENIHA Tﬁi
net basis into relevant maturity groupings B BB 4 Bl T LA R BB A4S
based in the remaining period at the BrzemaBE RPMIKE
balance sheet to the contractual maturity ZEBNDAEHRBERS
date. The amounts disclosed in the table mE - ARMRZEZES T
are the contractual undiscounted cash Ej( R+ZEARNEEZ
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal EHRESERHIREES -
their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
Between
Less than 1 and Over
1 year 2 years 2 years
—FUT —FEZWME WMEUL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ABTT BETT
At 31 December 2008 RZEZEN
—A=+—H
Bank borrowings %Efﬂ%*ﬂ 627,027 61,675 —
Trade and other payables %&Eﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬂ 1,705,350 — -
Due to related companies F%“ﬁ )N P O 174,032 — -
Derivative financial instruments TES raﬂI,\ 30,635 — —
At 31 December 2007 NZZEZTLF
+TZA=1+—H
Bank borrowings RITIE K 811,584 — —
Trade and other payables B REMEMNT 3,310,494 — —
Due to related companies FE T BBt N Rl TR IB 1,334,057 — —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Certain long-term assets (including
prepayment for property, plant and
equipment and prepayment for investments
in associates) are financed by short-term
bank loans. The management closely
monitors the availability of banking facilities
and investment plan (including, but not
limited to, the capital/investment
commitment as disclosed in Note 33)
through rolling forecasts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents. Since the Group
has not experienced any difficulty in
renewing the borrowings when they fell due
and the Group has unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$491,993,000
(Note 18) as at 31 December 2008, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group
maintains an adequate liquidity reserve.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide return for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
e MBEmRMEE (E

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HXEKRER (&)

328X ERER (&)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group’s strategy was to improve the gearing
ratio towards a target of below 1. The gearing
ratios as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 were
as follows:

Total borrowings (Note 18) &3 #2858 (PFif318)
Less: Cash and cash MBS RIEAZEY

equivalents (Note 15) (MS3E15)
Net debt BIRFRR
Total equity REm B

EARBLE(F)

Gearing ratio (times)

The decrease in gearing ratio resulted primarily
from disposal of the Disposed Group during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

HEEANEMAR K KNEE
NREABBLEXREREER -
BRI B EEFREBIAEAR
BREAE -BHRFERETRSR
BRERELBESFEY- &
rReBFELERD (WEEE
ERBERMIIR) -

REBEZ_ZFEZFTNF+ A
=+—BLEHFE XxEEEHE
WEEABBRELEEXREERMZ
AiE-R-F2LFR-_2%
NF+—_A=+—HzZEX&E
BHEEOT

31 December 31 December
2008 2007
—EENEF —ZEELEF
T A= H Rt atl=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Restated

Egdl

671,608 801,164
(217,124) (497,042)
454,484 304,122
770,642 273,256

0.59 1.11

EXRBELETH®  TEHR
RBEE_ZZZN\NF+ A
—+—HEFEHEELES
& BT8R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of derivative financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as commodity
future contracts and foreign exchange forward
contracts) is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial liabilities held by the Group is
the current bid price.

The carrying value less impairment provision of
trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note
2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of certain key
assumptions (Note 9). Changing such key
assumptions selected by management,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment
test.

If the estimated pre-tax discount rate
applied to the discounted cash flows for
the air-conditioning motors business had
been 1% higher than management’s
estimates, the recoverable amount of
goodwill would be still higher than its
carrying amount and no impairment of
goodwill shall be recognised.

Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is
estimated by independent professional
valuers based on various assumptions on
volatility, life of options, dividend paid out
rate and annual risk-free interest rate,
excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions, which generally represent
the best estimate of the fair value of the
share options at the date of grant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

5 Segment information

5.1 Primary reporting format — business

segments

In 2008, the Group

is organised into the

following main business segments:

Air-conditioning
motors business

Washing motors
business

Electronic and
electric
components
business

Raw material
business

Disposed Group

manufacture and
distribution of motors
for air-conditioner

manufacture and
distribution of motors
for washing machine
and dish washer

manufacture and
distribution of
transformers, resistors,
shaded pole motors
and electric bicycle
motors

trading of raw materials

manufacture and
distribution of
refrigerators,
air-conditioner and
mini-refrigerator
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oEWER (FE)
5.1 Primary reporting format — business 51 FEHHFEX XK
segments (Continued) (&)
The segment information for the year ended 31 HEE-_ZFTNF+ZHAH
December 2008 is as follows: =t+t—HLEFEZHEHEH
M
Electronic &
Washing electric
Air-conditioning motors components Raw material  Disposed
motors business business business business Group  Unallocated The Group
BREL ERER EREB RHBEE CHERE RAE KEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BRI BRI BETR B®Ir BETR B®In A¥ETR
Continuing operations BFERELY
Gross segment revenue BABUE 2,745,023 1,643,342 813,638 1,702,021 6,904,024
Inter-segment revenue A ERE N E (41,874) (7,939) (15,436)  (1,645,497) (1,710,746)
Revenue Wi 2,703,149 1,635,403 798,202 56,524 - 5193278
Operating profit/(loss) LEfE/ (BR) 71,456 116,202 21,633 9,020 (3,028) 221,83
Finance (costs)/income — net BE(KK) /WA —3FE (17,594) (3,507) (2,832 (8,814) 3,878 (28,869)
Profit before income tax M B 5 A S 192,414
Income tax expense FERES (5,560) (13,790 (2,943) (268) (6,249) (28,810)
Profit for the year from continuing BEmeEny EENE
operations 163,604
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIEEEEB ERFE
operations 32,575
Profit for the year EEFE 196,179
Segment assets NBEE 1,645,625 945,979 292,076 266,088 119,754 3,269,522
Deferred tax assets BEREEE 7,887
Prepayment for investments in associates BB % AR EHA 82,463
Total assets BEE 3,359,872
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,365,236 710,152 195,199 242,813 2,582,925
Deferred tax lbilties EERARRE it
Total fiabilties BafE 2,589,230
Capital expenditure EXEX 112,514 172,799 11,440 57,708 354,468
Other non-cash expenses/(income)  HftEB4M%/ (KA)
Depreciation K] 28,782 18,07 8,014 15,011 69,920
(Reversal)/provision for inventory FERERERES
obsolescence (Bm)/%E (65) 462 (731) 151 420
(Reversal)/provision for doubtful trade and & 5k £ th B Z R &
other receivables (@) /%6 (1,674 (1,148) (1,058) 12,778
Impairment charge on property, plant and 1% « B Rk 6 H R %
equipment 92 92
Fair value loss on derivative financial THESBRIANTERR
instruments 18,389 12,246 - 30,635
Fair value gain on investment properties & & %1% A FEK % - - (2,198) (2,198)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
TREMBHRRHE (8)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 72IHER (&)
5.1 Primary reporting format — business 51 FEHEHXN XKD
segments (Continued) (#&)
The restated segment information for the vyear Hz_—_ZETZTL+tHF+ = A
ended 31 December 2007 are as follows: —t+—HLEFEZEYDE
BHWT
Air- Electronic
conditioning Washing ~ and electric Industrial
motors motors  components  Raw material motors Disposed
business business business business business Group  Unallocated  The Group
= Rk E7EE 1%

THER  ERER  ERER RUMER  EHER DHE%E ADE AEM
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
BETL AT BETR AETR BRI A%Tn BRI BETR

Continuing operations BESEEY
Gross segment revenue BrFE 2732176 1,307,436 656,478 - - - — 4,696,090
Inter-segment revenue 2R s (21,882) (9,941) (19,275) - - - - (51,098)
Revenue Wi 2,710,294 1,297,495 637,203 - - - — 4,644,992
Operating profit/(loss) BEFE/ (BR) 119,736 137,251 36,110 37 - - (67,190) 225,944
Finance (costs)/income — net BE(KR)/WA—FE (9,635) 5,663 2,939 25 - - 7,173 6,165
Profit before income tax NBABHAHE 282,109
Income tax expense MERRAZ (12,998) (7,150) (4,673 (20) - - - (24,841)
Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ #EE L £ 7 EEFIE 207,268
Discontinued operations CRLEEEY
Profit for the year from discontinued operations E & |FE LKy £

gl - - - - 9,847 11,856 - 21,703
Profit for the year EEFE 228,971
Total assets BEE 2,185,449 802,661 393,177 5,872 — 2,260,340 149,684 5,797,183
Total fiabilties ZaE 1,886,080 564,329 358,713 21 - 2,616,406 98,428  5503,927
Capital expenditure BARY 82,104 41,451 2,163 - 16,107 150,846 7 292,678
Other non-cash expenses/(income) HtERemE/ (W)
Depreciation bk 27,222 12,122 7,692 4 1,563 64,486 36 113,115
(Reversal)/provision for inventory obsolescence 77 & B {8 BB W £

(D) /& (566) (514) 383 - — 26,421 - 25,724
Provision for doubtful trade and other BHREMBERTRE

receivables EiE 131 1,412 50 - - 33,832 - 35,425
Impairment charge on property, plant and nE BRRRERE
equipment =53 - - - - - 1,241 - 1,241

Fair valug loss on investment properties RENMEDTEER - - - - - 1,751 - 1,751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBBRHE (&

5 Segment information (Continued)

5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical

segments

The Group’s continuing and discontinued
operations operated in two main geographical

areas:

Domestic sales — manufacture and distribution
of motors and electronic
and electric products in the
PRC

Export sales — distribution of motors and

electronic and electric
products in countries and
areas outside the PRC

There are no sales between the geographical
segments. Analysis of sales by geographical

segment is as follows:

PEHER (&)
52 #BHREENX —HES I

AEBEZHRBEREERKRD

RIEGEXHENTMEZE

iR s

BREE — ETERE
N IHE
BEET
EBRREM

HOEE — EFPBES
EIEY S
B HE
BEETF
EIREM

o

0% 5 HAIL R B AR E B
BHE D BB D 2 HED
m -

Group

rE
2008 2007
2T )\ F g
HK$’000 HK$’000
ko B TT
Restated
E]l

chyesieh 3,317,367
WCLYACEYS 1,327,625

Continuing operations BEREEK
Domestic sales AN iHE
Export sales A E
Total aEt

5,1935278 EENT YR Ic)]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEHmRMmE (E)

5 Segment information (Continued) 5

5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments (Continued)

DEER (F)

52 REBHREFNX —HESE
(%&)

Group

rE
2008 2007
=L DS T AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
e BT T
Restated
el

1,146,717 BERYEN 74
ekiekil 1,416,569

Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Domestic sales N E

Export sales HHEE

Total =X

(DR 3,688,456

Revenue is allocated based on the country in
which the customer is located.

No geographical segment analysis on total assets
and capital expenditure is prepared as over 90%
of the Group’s total assets and capital
expenditures were located/incurred in the PRC.

WHRBEMEBRR DY
fic »

BN A& EO%IA £
BEERBEAAIEMN
R E P REE -
MY BERBEERE
AAXZzHED D
#T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e BB RME (&

6

Leasehold land and land use rights
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use

rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book value are analysed as follows:

6 HEITMRITMmERRE
AEBNREE b & 40 F A
ZREER/RBNEEHEENE R
EFEITET

Group
rE
2008 2007
= L \S TR AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
e i T 7t L v
Restated
F7
Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of & & LA4N » LA10E50F 2
10 to 50 years HEFHB 127,436 193,012
Group
rE
2008 2007
TEE)N\F g
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T L
Restated
=7
Opening net book amount FYREFE 193,012 133,747
Additions NE 30,680 89,810
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease 81 4% 4 78 & 5% 18 1 54
payments (2,773) (2,981)
Exchange difference EHER 10,642 13,064
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34(a) HEK B A A
and (b)) (M9 3F 34(a) K2(b)) (104,125) (40,628)
Closing net book amount FREEmFE 127,436 193,012

At 31 December 2008, leasehold land and land use
rights with net book value of approximately
HK$85,965,000 (2007: HK$87,859,000) have been
pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings (Note 18).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
S A 2y (4=
REMBHRKRME (F)
7 Property, plant and equipment 7 YME - BERRE
(@ Group @ =A%
Electronic
Construction- Plant and Motor and other
in-progress Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment Total
BER BfK
EEIR EBF B AE Htt R ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2007, as restated RZZZt+E-F—H
(Z71)
Cost A 107,753 457,345 966,556 16,358 302,391 1,850,403
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - (162,333) (559,984) (9,320) (214,225 (945,862)
Impairment BE - (23,782) (54,082) (60) (31,680 (109,554)
Net book amount FEFE 107,753 271,230 352,540 6,978 56,486 794,987
Year ended 31 December 2007, BE-FTT+HE
as restated +ZA=+-ALEE
(E31)
Opening net book amount FNERFE 107,753 271,230 352,540 6,978 56,486 794,987
Additions NE 49,962 34,409 77,108 1,829 39,565 202,868
Exchange difference ERER 7,908 19,908 25,876 512 4,146 58,350
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34(b)) &M B2 R (M 34(0)) (104,669) (9,692 (13,233) (1,380) (3,997) (132,971)
Other disposals Hipit & (2,126) (25,988) (30,017) 877) (5,765) (64,773)
Depreciation & - (29,330) (62,790) (1,578) (29,417) (113,115)
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment &R (&) /&L
charge - 612 (2,072) — 219 (1,241)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 58,828 261,149 357,407 5,484 61,237 744,105
At 31 December 2007, as restated NZTZTLF
+tZRA=+—R (&}
Cost A 58,828 470,171 981,959 12,912 255,080 1,778,950
Accumulated depreciation Z:HIE - (185,322) (564,870) (7,362) (160,876) (918,430)
Impairment A - (23,700) (59,682) (66) (32,967) (116,415)
Net book amount REFE 58,828 261,149 357,407 5,484 61,237 744,105
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-_TZTN\F
+ZA=+—ALFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 58,828 261,149 357,407 61,237 744,105
Additions NE 89,867 93,412 89,562 24,782 301,396
Exchange difference EREE 2,459 14,485 19,201 2,737 39,158
Other disposals Hih & (18,924) - (5,262) (601) (24,799)
Depreciation e - (PIRED) (39,514) (9,089) (69,920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34(a))  HEH B A (M 34(a)) (72,870) (106,055) (175,243) (60,856) (418,503)
Provision for impairment charge AERS &G - - = (92 (92)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 59,360 242,811 246,151 18,118 571,345
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+-A=+-H
Cost A 311,671 505,694 8,322 39,036 924,083
Accumulated depreciation Z:HIE (68,860) (259,543) (3,417) (20,918) (352,738)
Net book amount FREEFE 242,811 246,151 4,905 18,118 571,345
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHmRME ()

7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$64,169,000 (2007:
HK$91,257,000) has been charged in cost of
sales, HK$53,000 (2007: HK$80,000) in selling
and marketing costs and HK$5,698,000 (2007:
HK$21,778,000) in administrative expenses.

At 31 December 2008, property, plant and
equipment with net book value of
HK$133,229,000 (2007: HK$229,990,000) were
pledged as security for the Group’s short-term
bank borrowings (Note 18).

In 2008, the Group recognised impairment
provision of HK$92,000 (2007: HK$1,241,000) in
its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
= A
e BEHmRMEE ()
7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 7 Y% BMERSHE (&)
(b) Company (b) Z&2AFH
Furniture,
fixtures and
electronic
equipment
R HE
RETRERE
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2007 —ET+F—H—H
Cost ﬁJzZK 338
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (172)
Net book amount BREEE 166
Year ended 31 December 2007 HE_ZZ+F+_A=1+—HILFE
Opening net book amount ifﬁ],ﬁﬁﬁﬁrfﬁ 166
Additions NE 7
Disposals k= 6)
Depreciation e (42)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 125
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF+=-HA=+—H
Cost DN 278
Accumulated depreciation Etif e (153)
Net book amount REFE 125
Year ended 31 December 2008 #HE_ZTZEN\F+_A=1+—HILEFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 125
Additions NE 6
Depreciation e (43)
Exchange difference EHZER (1)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 87
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZENF+=-_A=+—H
Cost DN 284
Accumulated depreciation RETE (197)
Net book amount BREFE 87
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
e MBEmRMEE (E

8

Investment properties

Beginning of the year F1)
Fair value gain/(loss) (Note 23)

(P 3F23)
Exchange difference N ER

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34(a))

N EWRE (EE)

& BT B 2~ &) (1 3E34(a) )

End of the year FR

8 REWE
Group
rE
2008 2007
—EEN\F s
HK$°000 HK$'000
BTt L R
Restated
gl
106,800 101,224
2,198 (1,751)
4,895 7,327
(113,893) —
106,800

The investment properties represent 11 floors and 12
car parking spaces in Guo Xin Building, located in
Guangzhou, the PRC.

The investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2008 by Vigers Hong Kong Limited, a firm of
independent qualified valuers, before disposal.
Valuation was based on current prices in an active
market for all properties by virtue of the investment
approach. The increase in revaluation in current year
was credited to income statement.

The investment properties were disposed of on 31
March 2008 through the disposal of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
2 A = =
e BEHmRMHEE (BF)
9 Intangible assets 9 B|IFLEE
Group
AEE
Computer Technology
Goodwill software know-how Total
HE EREBHY BHEHM a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETR BETT BE¥TR
At 1 January 2007, as RZEET+F—H—H
restated (E75))
Cost B AR 19,639 523 214 20,376
Amortisation #E — (444) (184) (628)
Net book amount BRmEHE 19,639 79 30 19,748
Year ended 31 December HE_ZEZELF
2007, as restated +-—A=+—HILFE
(&%)
Opening net book amount FYR®EFE 19,639 79 30 19,748
Amortisation 5 — (59) (25) (84)
Exchange difference EHER 1,441 3 1 1,445
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKNERQ A
(Note 34(b)) (B4 5E34(0)) — (23) (6) (29)
Closing net book amount FREE®EFE 21,080 — — 21,080
At 1 January 2008, as RZEZENF
restated —A—B (&%)
Cost and net book amount XA & BRE FE 21,080 — — 21,080
Year ended 31 December BHE-_ZTENFE
2008 +ZA=+—HIEFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFAE 21,080 — — 21,080
Exchange difference EHER 1,330 — — 1,330
22,410 — — 22,410
At 31 December 2008 RZETNF
+=-A=+—8H
Cost and net book amount KA N EBE®E FEE 22,410 - - 22,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M R

9

Intangible assets (Continued)
The goodwill is attributable to the significant synergies

expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition of the
minority interests of Guangdong Welling Motor
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., which is a cash-generating
units (“CGU”) in air-conditioning motor segments
located in PRC.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are as follows:

Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) 8%

Growth rate (weighted average growth rate 3%
used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period)

Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied 15%
to the cash flow projections)

Management determined budgeted gross margin
based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
markets of air-conditioning motor. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to
the relevant segments.

Amortisation of computer software and technology
know-how is included in the administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEmRMmE (F)

10 Investments in subsidiaries

10 MEBLQARE

Company
KA HE]

2008 2007

NG| T SRR A

HK$’000 HK$’000

e T 7t L

Unlisted equity interests, at cost IEETARHEE - R AN E 4,500,000 30,997
Exchange difference ERE=E 77,692 —
Due to subsidiaries XL ENGIE ] (60,477) —
Due from subsidiaries JiE s B /B X B) FR B - 878,648
4,517,215 909,645
Less: Provision B (909,645)

4,517,215

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment.

FEW, (e M B R RRIEL R
EBEM 28 BERBEEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

10 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 10 B ATIIRE (&)
The particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December MBRARR-_ZZENFE+ A
2008 are: =T —HZFHBERT:
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued
establishment and kind Principal activities and share capital/registered Effective
Name of legal entity place of operation capital interest held
AL, BRI i B FTEEK ERITRE Fri 5
B REEERER R B HEMERZFE BXER
Directly held:
HERE:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
liability company USD1 each
B EEREBV)E R A A EBELHE EREME KREZFR 10,000/% & Ax I {155
NG| TT2E R
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
Guangdong Welling Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (foreign investment of motors and USD26,610,000
enterprises) transformers
BREEE#EEGR DA R BEREMERQR HEREEEH AER
(NEDRZ) N R s 26,610,000 7T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading ~ Registered capital 100%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (foreign investment of motors USD6,400,000
enterprises)
8 1LTTB BE E RE A RE HECAREMELT HEREEEH &R
BERAA (SNERE) 6,400,000 JT
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (foreign investment of motors and USD15,000,000
enterprises) transformers
BUTHEESFERZEFRAF R BEREMERQR HEREEEHR &R
(NERZ) B 15,000,000% 7T
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%

Co., Ltd.

R (B9 BRBLERR A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

10 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind

Principal activities and

10 MBLQRRE (&)

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

Effective

Name of legal entity place of operation capital interest held
L AR S, AR 3L b B FTEEK BRITRE Fr¥s
=x REEEBER T A8 i B HEMER2FE AR ERE
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEsE: (&)
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and trading  Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (foreign investment of motors USD5,000,000
enterprises)
ELHBEEREEFGR A A hEBREERA HEREBEEHK ERIIE=EN
(ONERE) 5,000,000 7T
Foshan Welling Material Supply PRC, limited liability company Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. RMB20,000,000
BT EMEHERRAR R BEREMERQA BEERME AfER
A B #20,000,0007T
Welling Macao Commercial Offshore Macao Special Administrative  Offshore trading Registered Capital Macao 100%
Limited Region, limited liability Pataca 100,000
company
RERFIBEEEERBBERLR  RFIFNITHRER - AR BEERS ERIIE=EN
E/NC] JBL P9 #100,0007T
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 10 ordinary shares of 100%
company HK$1 each
HREEEREEEBRAA 5B BREMETAA REZERK 100 B E BB BT
Z B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
= AN = =]
e REE (F)
10 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 10 MBLARKE (&)
The subsidiaries disposed to the Vendor at 31 March RZEENF=ZA=Z+T—HME
2008 as described in Note 1 are: FHEZHB AR (MzE1prat &)
LU
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued
establishment and kind Principal activities and share capital/registered Effective
Name of legal entity place of operation capital interest held
SEf RS2, B 3L b B FTEXH ERTRE Fr¥
=x REEERER RQ&EWE SEMERZFHE MR
Directly held:
BEEREH:
China Refrigeration Industry Co., Ltd. ~ PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and sale of ~ Registered capital 95%
refrigerators in the PRC US$10,000,000
HEEEEEAR QA R BEREMERQA R ERE REEKE FHER
10,000,000 7T
Hualing Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in 10 ordinary shares of 100%
company Hong Kong HK$1 each
FEEMNBRERQA EE AREERAA REBREER 100 &R E BB BT
2 & B
Hualing (Far East) Limited British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
liability company Hong Kong
% ER)ERQT REBELHE AREMET REBREZER 1REREMBEIET
A7 2 &AM
Hualing (Guangzhou) Electrical PRC, limited liability company Distribution of HUALING Registered capital 100%
Appliances Co., Ltd. brand products in the HK$10,000,000
PRC
2% (EM)ERERAA R BEREMERR RPESHEEZRE FWER
Em 7 10,000,0007T

156 Waelling Holding Limited
Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

10 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 10 B RARKRE (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued

establishment and kind Principal activities and share capital/registered Effective
Name of legal entity place of operation capital interest held

L AR S, AR 3L b B FTEEK BRITRE Fr¥s
=x REEEBER RRE W HEMER2FE BXER

Indirectly held:

BESE:
Guangzhou Hualing Air-conditioning &  PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and sale of ~ Registered capital 100%
Equipment Co., Ltd. air-conditioners and US$60,000,000
electronic appliances in
the PRC
BMEZZEFHZEERAA hEBREERA R EEEREE HMER
=R ER 60,000,0005% 7T
Guangzhou Hualing Electrical PRC, limited liability company Dormant Registered capital 95.5%
Household Appliance Enterprise RMB3,000,000
Co., Ltd.
BMEEZRECEER DA R BEREMERQA BEEER AfER
A R #3,000,0007T
Hefei Hualing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and sale of ~ Registered capital 50.05%
mini-refrigerators in the RMB91,200,000
PRC
slEgEZERNBR AR hEBEREERA R EEEREE AMER
INBUKAE A R #91,200,0007T
Growth Plus Properties Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited  Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
liability company each
Growth Plus Properties Ltd. EREBEZES BREFE BEER 1REREMBEIET
NG Z B
Guangdong Hualing Commercial PRC, limited liability company Dormant Registered capital 100%
Air-conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd. RMB30,000,000
BREZFREFHREBRRF  FBE- - ERETAA EEER HMER
A E&%30,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBBRME (&

11

Inventories

11 FE&

Raw materials R 44
Work-in-progress M@
Finished goods RUAL o

Group

&K
2008 2007
2PN — TR F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T L
Restated
el
103,895 272,839
19,749 55,499
120,244 544,608
243,888 872,946

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of goods sold amounted to
HK$4,451,476,000 (2007: HK$3,919,814,000) for
continuing operations.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of goods sold amounted to
HK$1,205,061,000 (2007: HK$3,184,214,000) for
discontinued operations.

The Group charged HK$420,000 of inventory provision
in 2008 (2007: HK$25,724,000). The amount charged
has been included in cost of goods sold in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

12 Trade and other receivables

12 BEZREMERRK

Group Company
rE AR

2008 2007 2008 2007
—ss\s BEXIEH -+ BEL IR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) 5 EUGK (@)
Less: provision for impairment & : S5 {8 B &
(Note (c)) (M 7EE)

Trade receivables — net B oK — F8
Notes receivable (Notes (@)&(d)) FE U =%
(Ff 3£ (a) 2 (d))
Prepayments and other T8 A 3 I H Ath B UK
receivables
R+ E i FE U RO (B
& (Me)

Less: provision for impairment
of other receivables

(Note (c)) (113)
Prepaid value-added tax — net TE{JIZER — F 28
(Note 13) (Bt 5¥13) 9,447

1,034,434

B IERDEAEE &>
Prepayment for investments in ~ JB{TEE4 A RIS E
associates (Note (g)) I8 (M 7EEe)
Prepayment for property, plant B ¥% BE &

and equipment BE

Less: non-current portion

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the fair values of
trade and other receivables of the Group and the
Company approximate their carrying amounts.

Py 1,820,749

BT D iesian BB TIT
Restated
=7

763,303

(83,138)

680,165

969,593

161,657

1,820,749

TEHF+Z
H_+ B $%l&$@ﬁ2§
SREMERRZ AFERELR
[GEEREES

—EENFRZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEmRMmE (F)

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, prepayments and

other receivables of the Company are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Trade and other receivables of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 are
denominated in the following currencies:

12

ESRHMEWRRK (F)
AN—_EENEFER_FTELF+ =
A=+—HB A2 zBAHREE
fth FE GRS ME - AEBR
TEEN\NFEFR_ZTETLF+ A
—+—HZ2EB S KEMERFKIA
THEEETIE

Group

rE
2008 2007
—EE )\ F e Egca
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T LR
Restated
]

RMB AR
HK$ ks
UsD E7T
EUR BT

chpenil 1,275,833

1,407 728
363,623 446,489
125,356 97,699

emkle 1,820,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SEVBHRRHE (E

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(@)

The majority of the Group’s export sales are on
letter of credit or documents against payment, or
covered by customers’ standby letters of credit
or bank guarantees. The remaining amounts are
with credit terms of 30 days to 90 days. As at
31 December 2008, the ageing analysis of the
gross trade receivables and notes receivable are
as follows:

12

ESRHMEWR (E)

@ AEBZHEOEERITD I
EREINRZEFTEST
IUNEFPZHERAEAZBERR
TERERBE-HBpoBEZ
ZEH AR E0H - R T
ENFEF+_A=+—H &
SRR REREIRBEE
BRERDITEAT -

2008 2007

= = S T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
ko AT T
Restated
£l

Within one year —F AR
In the second year F_FRN
Over two years ME N E

clopfillas 1,677,583
19 25,198
— 30,115

clpZeliel 1,732,896

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, no trade
receivables were past due but not impaired.

b) RZEENFR_ZTZT+LHF
+—A=+—HB HEZS
JE W SR E BRE DR B ORL(E ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBBRME (&

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, trade and
other receivables of approximately
HK$239,307,000 and HK$355,121,000 were
impaired. The provision in relation thereto was
approximately HK$18,907,000 and
HK$83,251,000 for 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The individual impaired receivables mainly relate
to past due payments from customers. There is
no recent history of default for most of the
customers, it was assessed that a large portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

12

ESRHMEWRRK (F)

© RZZEZENFRZ_ZTZTLHF
+-_A=Z+—HB EH5KkEH
1t & U 3K 49 78 #239,307,000
7T N & #355,121,0007T E &
BE-R_ZEENEFR_ZEZT
tFEZEBBRBED RIL B
18,007,000t & & &
83,251,0007T ° & 51| & & F& 4
REZHRFBIHNRER -
RNEBD B PR HAIW &\ IE R
8 BETH REBH EU K TE
el E e it ERIK K Z
BREQUOT -

Within one year —F R
In the second year EF-FNRN
Over two years S

Group

rE
2008 2007
= O\ T RT A F
HK$’000 HK$’000
i AT T
Restated
£l
239,288 299,808
19 25,198
— 30,115
239,307 355,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SEVBHRRHE (E

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(©

12

BEZREMEBEWR (&)

(Continued) © (&)
Movements on the provision for impairment are BEEEZEHIT
as follows:
Group
AEE
2008 2007
S\ F kg
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT LR
Restated
=7
Beginning of the year F 4] 83,251 68,673
Provision for impairment R (B 1 15,066 38,927
Bad debts written off 2 BR 3R (2,373) (22,528)
Unused amounts reversed B O REARIE (6,168) (3,502)
Exchange difference EHER 5,260 5,043
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A (76,129) (3,362)
End of the year F R 18,907 83,251

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in administrative
expenses in the income statement (Note 24).
Amounts charged to the allowance account are
generally written off when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

The unused amounts reversed represented the
subsequent collection of previously provided
impaired amounts.

The other classes within trade and other
receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The balance represents bank acceptance notes
with maturity periods within six months.

I8 N B R 2 e URRORL (B B
BEFARER ZITHAX
A (P 5E24) © fii T8 HI T BE K
Bl HNR 2 - BIET A B BR
ZERREME -

BozAsmeEsRREK
Mz BEREEREDSE-

B 5 MEMEYRR 2 HE LR
MABEFEEREERE-

o) BRELHR/ANEARNIHZ

RITALES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR M R

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

C)

On 26 November 2008, two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company entered into a joint
venture agreement in PRC (“PRC JV Agreement”)
and a share subscription agreement (“Subscription
Agreement”) in Hong Kong, through which the
Group proposed to acquire 49% minority
interests in four PRC companies (collectively, the
“Target Companies” and the transaction as the
“Acquisition”).

Before the Acquisition, the Target Companies
were owned by an independent party of the
Group (the “Domestic Vendor”). The Target
Companies are engaged in manufacturing of
casting products.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group paid
consideration of HK$82,463,000 in accordance
with the PRC JV Agreement as capital
contribution for the formation of a joint venture
company incorporated in Shanxi Province, the
PRC. The joint venture company was held by the
Group and the Domestic Vendor by 49% and
51% respectively as at 31 December 2008. The
Group has also paid consideration of HK$98 in
accordance with the Subscription Agreement,
and held 49% interest in the Linkgo-HK Limited
as at 31 December 2008.

Linkgo-HK Limited is an investment holding
company incorporated in Hong Kong. It is the
minority shareholder of certain Target Companies.
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RZEZENF+—HZTR
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B8 E1H |) 249% ) 8% R HE
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s o
T

WHEERETH  AEEZ
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Wi EMm-
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H AEEREBEFHEED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

12 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

C)

(Continued)

However, as the completion of the Acquisition is
subject to the future fulfillment of certain terms
stated in the PRC JV Agreement by the Group
and the Domestic Vendor, the consideration paid
is recognised as prepayment for investments in
associates in the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2008.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the total
consideration of HK$202,181,000 will be
recognized as the cost for the investments in
associates, and the Group’s investments in
associates will be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost. The Group’s share of its associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses will be
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves will be recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements will be
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group will not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

12 EZREMEBEURR (&)

()

(&)

N - BRKEEFHEEAEFA
SEERAMEF BIEEKT
BeaBEtxmaEmttsa T
R ig - HETK A
ZRER-_ZEZENF+ A
—t—HZEEEERER
PHERATEMNBE RTIRE
FRIE o

FREWRESETKE B
#202,181,0007T 2 42 1 B #5
BMRABENBIRERA
MAEERBERNRZRE
A= e RIES R Y]
PRI ABERER - NE B AT
HEBE QG WREEEFE R
EEENGAKERAER
i EL Bk Uk B 1% R 2 E) Al
RFEHEAER Rt B
BEHEELEZEREBEED
AR -FAEEMEHED
BB B A E R Z R HE R
BNz =R (BREEAMAE
fib B K IR R ) AE BT
S —THEREE HRIEH
ERERBELERAAEETN
YE A SRBIVE R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

SEVBHRRHE (E

13

14

Prepaid value-added tax — net

The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”)
to the State Tax Bureau for the finished goods
purchased from its suppliers. In accordance with the
relevant PRC tax regulations, these VAT can be offset
with the output VAT arising from the sales in the
future but are not refundable. The balances at 31
December 2007 and 2008 represented net input VAT
after offsetting the output VAT payable by the Group
for the domestic sales made during the year.

Pledged bank deposits
Certain bank balances were pledged against bank

acceptance notes issued by the Group (Note 19(b))
and these deposits will be released upon the maturity
of the bank acceptance notes issued. These pledged
bank deposits bear interest at bank saving rates
ranging from 1.98% to 3.78% per annum (2007:
ranging from 2.25% to 3.78% per annum).

13 ANEEHR FE
AEELSBEHERZEHKMA
BRBE R EEIEER ([
BER]) - RIFERE T BHRBOER
ZEEERATARNENRKEES
EEZHBERER  BTARE -
RIZBEZLFR-_ZTNF+Z
A=t+—Bz&EaEREED
HBRARERAFERBEAHFEE
A 2 SHTRIEE R 2 F 7R -

14 S2HEARITHEXRX
ETRTESRNDIEAREBFTH
2 R IT A K EE 2 | (M 5
190)  MZEFRBEREL 2R
THRGEZIHERR ZEEK
HROTFARBRBITIERENEN
T1.98%=£3.78% T~ E (= T T +
F o F R KN F225%%E3.78% 1

A\ -
F)Ft B e

Total pledged bank deposits
Less: Maturity period within 3 months

BEHEFRITFRER
B = 1Bl A AR B HY

Maturity period over 3 months and less
than 9 months (Note 15)

=ERAREELRAEA R
2 (Y 5E15)

2008 2007
—z2 )5 [EEE I
HK$’000 HK$'000
et Tt G b
Restated

Egdl

145,698 276,019
(84,678) —
61,020 276,019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

mEMBHRERMNE (B

15 Cash and cash equivalents 15 REeEkBREEEY
Group Company
rEE AARQF

2008
—EENE
HK$°000
EET

Cash at banks and on hand $R{THFXEFERS
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITER
(Note 14) (Mf3E14)

Less: Pledged bank deposits ¥ : =1& A LA F{B DR
with maturity period NERRHZE
over 3 months and EHIRITER
less than 9 months (MF3¥14)

(Note 14)

132,446

145,698

(61,020

At 31 December 2008, cash at banks and pledged
bank deposits with maturity period within 3 months
and cash in hand of the Group amounted to
HK$251,630,000 (2007: HK$717,034,000) were kept
in bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC of
which the remittance of funds were subject to foreign
exchange control.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 1.19%
per annum (2007: 1.42% per annum).

2007 2008 2007

S il —==/\7 EEX T
HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T BRCUEEN BT

Restated
]

497,042 2,688

276,019

(276,019)

RZZENF+ZA=+—H 'K
SEZEBITER Z@EARIEEN
EERBRTEREFER B
251,630,000 (ZZEE L F : K
717,034,0007T ) + T3 17 IR £
R ZRITERPH  ZEE S ZE

HASIMEE B HR °

RITERZEBRFFEAE1.19% (=
TR F  FFE142%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

16 Share capital and share options

(@) Share capital

16 BRARBERE
(@ B’XE
Authorised
EERA

Ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

BREEB¥ATZEER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$’000
1D 8B
(FR&) BT
At 1 January 2007, R-_EETLF—H—H-
31 December 2007 and —EE+F+-_B=+—H
1 January 2008 E—_FEENF—H—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Increase in authorised share % & B ASE hn(i)
capital (i) 10,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2008 RZTZTNF
+—-A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
TREMBHRRHE (F)

16 Share capital and share options (Continued) 16 RARERE (&)

(@) Share capital (Continued) (@ B (&)

Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

ERITRAZRE
BREEB¥ITZEBER
Number of
shares
('000) HK$'000
&HE R
(Fh) BT T
At 1 January 2007 as R-ZEET+F—H—H
previously reported (LAERE) 4,687,091 468,709
Issue of consideration BITHREB R M (i)
shares (ii) 8,753,323 875,332
At 1 January 2007, as restated R —ZEZ+4—H—H
(&5)) 13,440,414 1,344,041
Employee share option scheme & 8 B A% /& 51 2|
— shares issued (i) — B AT IR A5 (i) 38,900 3,890
At 31 December 2007 and RZEZF
31 December 2008, as +-A=+—8BxK
restated —EEN\F+=-_A=+—H
(EH)) 13,479,314 1,347,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e B|KRMEE (F)

16 Share capital and share options (Continued) 16

(@) Share capital (Continued)

BRARERE (&)
(@) & (&)

Company
¥ N
Issued and fully paid
ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

ERITRAZERE
BRAEEBYITZEBR
Number of
shares
('000) HK$’000
I 1n & H
(FR) BT T
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZEZTLF—H—H 4,687,091 468,709
Employee share option scheme {& B i J& £ =t 2|
— shares issued (jii) —B 1T A7 (ii) 38,900 3,890
At 31 December 2007 and RZEELF
1 January 2008 +-A=+—BK
—ZETENF—-H—H 4,725,991 472,599
Issue of consideration shares (i) %17 {18 & 15 (ii) 8,753,323 875,332
At 31 December 2008 RZZTZT)\F
+=ZA=+—H 13,479,314 1,347,931

()  Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed
on 18 March 2008, the authorised capital
of the Company was increased from
HK$1,000,000,000 to HK$2,000,000,000 by
the creation of an additional 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each ranking pari passu
with the then existing shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

LEMBHmRHE ()

16 Share capital and share options (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

(i

(i)

On 31 March 2008, 8,753,323,092 shares
were allotted and issued to the Vendor as
consideration shares at a price of HK$0.414
per share upon the completion of the
Transaction (Note 1), the total proceeds of
approximately HK$3,623,876,000 are
presented as the increase in share capital
and share premium of the Group by
approximately HK$875,332,000 and
HK$2,748,544,000 respectively. The ordinary
shares issued as part of the Transaction are
presented as if it had always been issued,
and the deemed distribution of
HK$3,623,876,000 as a result of the
consideration issuance was debited to the
merger reserve (Note 17(d)) using the
principles of merger accounting as
prescribed in HKAG 5 in the consolidated
financial statement of the Group.

The share options exercised by the directors
and employees of the Group in 2007,
resulted in 38,900,000 shares being issued
at HK$0.1206. The yielding proceeds after
transaction costs of approximately
HK$4,684,000.

Share options

Share options were granted to the directors of
the Company and certain employees of the
Group in respect of their services provided to the
Group in accordance with the scheme adopted
by the Company on 27 June 2003 (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

16 HXZK&E%EX% (nﬁ)

(a)

(b)

R (&)

(i)

(i)

RZEENF=A=*+—
A FZIEXHTHKE -
BEiREREK0414TT 2
Bi&mE 7R RET
8,753,323,092/% A% 7 1E
ARERD (MEE1) - Fr
B RIEBHEBENHEE
3,623,876,0007T * 7 5l
2 RBAEERAE N
#) 7 #875,332,0007T &
=
2,748,544,0007T ° #% 1A
RPPAFEITZEBRE
EIHEEEL—HHE
T-ABITRERMDM
EEXEZHEDREE
3,623,876,0007C ' B & &
B EETE 5| 5P E
ZafteEsrRA EX
SESEMBRERZE
Bt & B R0 B (5T
17(d)) °

rEBEEEREERZ
ST FITEBRE
¥ 5138,900,0008% I 17 3%
7 #0.12067T % 17 0
MR SKA%BZTER
TH #) 75 ¥64,684,0007T °

B

Z'X/

AIRBEER-_ZTE=F

NAZTLERERABZBARE

srEl (st all)

A /%

AEBREREZARAE
ERAGEETRERERTE
P HE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eI ERAR MR

16 Share capital and share options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for
the Company to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group and
to provide the Company with a flexible means of
giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the
participants. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include the directors (including
executive directors and non-executive directors)
or employees of the Group, consultants or
advisors of the Group, substantial shareholders
or employees of substantial shareholders of the
Company, associates of directors or chief
executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company, employees or directors of suppliers or
customers of the Group, discretionary objects of
a discretionary trust established by employees or
directors of the Group, as to be determined by
the board at its absolute discretion within the
above categories.

The maximum numbers of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at 27 June 2003, but the Company
may seek approval of its shareholders in general
meeting to refresh the 10% Ilimit under Share
Option Scheme.
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16 Share capital and share options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to
each participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to the approval of shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.

Share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval of the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is also the grantee of the
options). In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares at the date of
each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant, are subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company.

The exercise price of the share options will be at
least the highest of () the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet of HKSE on the date of the offer for grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in HKSE’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
the offer for grant, which must be a business
day; and (i) the nominal value of the share.
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16 Share capital and share options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The share options granted may be exercised at
any time during the period commencing
immediately after the date on which the option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and
expiring on a date to be determined and notified
by the board of directors which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the
share option is deemed to be granted and
accepted. Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 vyears
commencing on 27 June 2003.

As at 31 December 2008, 9,500,000 share
options granted to directors of the Company and
employees of the Group were outstanding. These
share options were exercisable immediately on
the date of grant on 30 July 2007 at an exercise
price of HK$0.78 per share. They will be lapsed
on 29 July 2017. No share options were granted
to, or exercised by directors of the Company or
employees of the Group during the year.

The fair value of options granted on 30 July
2007 was determined using the Binomial Model.
The key assumptions used in the valuation
include: (i) an expected dividend yield of 0% per
annum, (ii) volatility of share price of 65.38% per
annum (expressed as weighted average volatility
used in the modelling of Binomial Model, which
is the annualised standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rate of return on the
share over a period of time), (i) a risk free rate
of interest on options of 4.13% per annum, and
(iv) the expected time to exercise is 5.23 years.
Based on the valuation, the fair value of the
9,500,000 share options granted in year 2007
was approximately HK$3,453,000, which was
recognised as employee benefit expense (Note
25) and a corresponding increase in share option
reserve (Note 17).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
TREMBHRRME (F)

16 Share capital and share options (Continued) 16 RARBERE (&)

(b) Share options (Continued) (b) BRR#EGE)
Movements of the share options granted under RER - BIEERETER
the Share Option Scheme during the year are as HBERESEEFMT
follows:

Share Share

Share options options Share
options held granted  exercised options held at Exercise
at 1 January during the during the 31 December price Exercisable Exercisable
2008 year year 2008 HK$ Grant date from until
RZBENEF RZBENF
-A-B5KE REARE RERTE t=A=+-B TKE TIRAR ATEHRR
Name #E ZBRE ZBRE <BRE SKEZERE B% BEBH B#A #RA
Directors: BE:
Chan Wai Dune R e i 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
Lam Ming Yung WERE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
Chen Chunhua RET 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.78  30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
Employees EE 3,500,000 - - 3,500,000 0.78  30/7/2007  30/7/2007  29/7/2017
9,500,000 - - 9,500,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
— —
MEMBHmRME (F)
17 Other reserves 17 HftufE e
Statutory  General Enterprise Share
Share  reserve  reserve expansion option Exchange  Merger
premium fund fund fund reserve reserve  reserve Total
EERE -BEE CERE  BRE
R RE ¢ o5 28 RE ERRE AUREE h
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
BETT BT AT A%Tr B%Tr B¥ETr A%t R%Tn
Note ()  Note (c)  Note (c) Note (d)
fizke) M M) M5t
(a) Group B A5H
Balance at 1 January 2007, R-EE+tF-A-A

as restated (Note 2.1) &e (E5)

(HaE2.1) 3,335,579 103 70,164 64,969 4,125 (10,226) (3,639,249) (174,535
Employee share option scheme  {E & i kit 2
— proceeds from shares issued ~ — E{TIRID PTG IIE

(Note 16(a)) (MiEH16(9)) 794 - - - - - - 794
— value of services provided —FRERE 2 EE

(Note 16(0)) (B =E16(0)) - - - - 3,453 - - 3453
Transfer to statutory reserves BETETHE - 560 6,593 5,806 - - - 12,959
Tranglation difference ERZE - - - - - 8,647 - 8,647
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - (332 - - - - 332
Balance at 31 December R-BBLFE+=A

2007, as restated =t-H&R (BF)

(Note 2.1) (F&E2.1) 3,336,373 663 73,436 70,775 7,578 (1,579) (3,639,249)  (152,003)
Balance at 1 January 2008, R-ZBENE-A—-H

as restated (Note 2.1) ek (E3)

(H3k2.1) 3,336,373 663 73436 70775 7578 (1,579 (3,639.249) (152,009)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF

(Note 34 (a)) (734 () - - @179 (16,988 - - - 48137
Deemed contribution arising ZERHEEL

from the Transaction BIEER (534())

(Note 34 (a) - - - - - — 404351 404351
Translation difference EFxE - - - - - 225 - 225
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETHE - - 16,93 6,550 - - - 23485
Balance at 31 December R-ZBENE

2008 +ZA=+-H&H 3,336,373 663 59,192 60,367 7,578 (1,354) (3,234,898) 227,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
S A = =)
e EEmERMEE (8)
17 Other reserves (Continued) 17 Hibf#E (8)
Share
Share option Exchange
premium reserve reserve Total
B R
1D E e EREE =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BT BETIT BETT
(o) Company (o) AT
Balances as at KRBT F
1 January 2007 —A—B#&% 587,035 4125 — 591,160
Employee share option RER ﬂ & &l
scheme
— value of services —PFRHERBE 2
provided (Note 16(b)) E1E (M7E16(0)) — 3,453 — 3,453
— proceeds from shares — BITRM G
issued (Note 16(a)) I8 (fF3E16()) 794 — — 794
Balance as at RZEELF
31 December 2007 +=—RA=+—H
&R 587,829 7,578 — 595,407
Balance as at R-ZEENF
1 January 2008 —A—B#&% 587,829 7,578 — 595,407
Translation difference fEHZ=ZF — — 70,228 70,228
Issue of consideration BITRERD
shares (Note 16(a)) (Bt $%16(a) ) 2,748,544 — — 2,748,544
Balances as at R_ZEZNF
31 December 2008 +=—A=+—H
=R 3,336,373 7,578 70,228 3,414,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR AR MR

17 Other reserves (Continued)

(©

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
follow the laws and regulations of the PRC and
their articles of association. These subsidiaries
are required to provide for certain statutory
funds, namely, general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund, which are appropriated
from net profit after taxation but before dividend
distribution based on the local statutory accounts
prepared in accordance with accounting
principles and relevant financial regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC.
These PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate
at least 10% of its net profit to the reserve fund
until the balance of such fund has reached 50%
of its registered capital. Such appropriations are
determined at the discretion of the directors. The
general reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated deficit or increase capital.

Merger reserve represents the difference between
the consideration paid for the acquisition under
common control, and the aggregate nominal
value of share capital/paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed by
the equity holders of the Company. As a result
of the Transaction, net deemed distribution of
approximately HK$3,219,525,000 are debited to
the merger reserve, comprising the deemed
distribution of approximately HK$3,623,876,000
arising from the issuance of consideration shares
to the Vendor (Note 16(a)), and deemed
contribution of approximately HK$404,351,000
arising from the disposal of the Disposed Group
and the assignment of the net receivables from
Disposed Group to the Vendor (Note 34 (a)) as
part of the consideration of the Transaction.
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Non-current
Long-term bank borrowings,

secured

Less: current portion

FE BN 3
RERTTS

B BIER AR

(£

B — BAHEHE

Current

Short-term bank borrowings,

secured

Current portion of long-term bank & AR 171
borrowings, secured

B 54
R HRTT A8

— B

H £
B TA

X —BEA

Z BVERER 7

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s bank borrowings

were repayable as follows:

— ==
Pz

17

Within one year
In the second year

N
EF-FNRN

Group

2008

—2BNF

HK$°000
BT

611,608

611,608

671,608

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e BB RME (&

18 Borrowings

2007
—ET+F
HK$’000
BT T
Restated
57

32,0562
(32,052)

769,112

32,052

801,164

801,164

NEFE+ZA=+—RH" &
fERZ BRIBERAT

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
]
611,608 801,164
60,000 —
671,608 801,164
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The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates are
as follows:

18

Borrowings with fixed rate subject & & & 3%~ &%
to repricing date as: EERH:

6 months or less ~ME A AT

6 months to 1 year NEARE—F

i H £AH .
FBEE

NEASAT

Borrowings with floating rate as:
6 months or less

The effective interest rates of the above floating rate
borrowings at the balance sheet date were 6.66% per
annum (2007: 5.90% per annum).

Property, plant and equipment with net book value of
HK$133,229,000 (2007: HK$229,990,000) and
leasehold land and land use right with net book value
of HK$85,965,000 (2007: HK$87,859,000) have been
pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings (Note 6 and Note 7).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e BB RME (&

18 Borrowings (continued)

& (&)
AEEZEREEBZMEEHR
hkEaWEHEEBMAOT

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENFE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
=5
306,062 212,515
159,019 42,735
465,081 255,250
206,527 545,914
671,608 801,164

REEH FUZBERCERE
MK AE666%(ZTEEF  FRX
5.90% ) °

AR M )% {8 /8 #133,229,0007T (= F
T+ 4 3 #220,990,0007T ) Z ¥
¥ HWELEE UKEEFED
#:85,965,0007C (Z B ZE + 4 : B
87,859,0007t ) 2 1 & £ #f & + #b
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEmRMEE (E

18 Borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings
and the long-term borrowings approximate their fair
values. The fair values of long-term borrowings is
based on cash flows discounted using a rate based
on the borrowings rate of 2.45% (2007: Nil). The
carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies.

18 &K (&)
RERTERRERERZEKE
EREEQNFERE RMERZA
FETREERF £R2.45% (= F
TLFE) RRERERRE
BofERzEEENRTIEET
(@ o

RMB AR
HK$ B
UsD ETT
EUR B T

Group
rEH
2008 2007
—S2/\F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B TT
Restated
57
601,382 752,029
60,000 35,015
10,226 —
- 14,120
671,608 801,164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
MENBHMRMEE (F)
18 Borrowings (continued)

The Group has the following unutilised borrowing and
commercial bills facilities:

18

Borrowing facilities: ERmEE

— Expiring within one year — —F AT H
— Expiring over one year — —F 1255
Commercial bills facilities: EEEEME
— Expiring within one year — —F AT H

Unutilised bank facilities of HK$449,442,000 are
expected to be renewed upon maturity.
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B (5])
REBXABAZERLBEZE
BmEWMT

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
2]l
285,331 932,692
39,773 92,140
166,889 332,618
491,993 1,357,450

FENA 2 SR1TRLE 7B #5449,442,000
TTTEBNEBERES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e BB RME (&

19 Trade and other payables

19 B9 REMEMR

Group
=EE

Company
PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
= L O T ETHF L L S T DR A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BRGNS T L R
Restated

Ex]l

Trade payables 2 S ENK
(Note (a)) (M3E (@)

Notes payable e R
(Notes (a), (b)) (M 3E@) ' (b))

ebirlre 1,934,714

369,342 885,036

Provision for staff welfare 8 T1gF| &

and bonus TEAT B
Accruals ERE A
Advances from FEREFER

customers
Others HAh

el 2,819,750

44,824
13,046

370
50,876

51,006
148,220

6,136 198,674
69,245 92,844

ITOETERDE 3,310,494

2,593 51,685

(@ At 31 December 2008, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables and note payables of the Group

was as follows:

@ R-BENF+=A=+-—
A AREZESENKR
EANERE2ZERDFOT :

Within one year
In the second year
Over two years

—FE R
EF_FN
S

Group

rEH
2008 2007
=22\ B L T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
£
1,560,449 2,796,707
10,851 6,368
799 16,675
1,572,099 2,819,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
MEMBHERHME (F)

19 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b)

The balance represents non-interest bearing bank
acceptance notes issued by the Group with
maturity periods of less than nine months. As at
31 December 2008, certain notes payable were
pledged by bank deposits of approximately
HK$145,698,000 (2007: HK$276,019,000) (Note
14).

20 Derivative financial instruments

19 ESZREMEMNRK (&)

20

Commodity future contracts HEREEESH
(Note (a)) (M7 (a))

Foreign exchange forward SN R BR A 4
contracts (Note (b)) (M 5E D))

The Group has entered into various copper and
aluminum future contracts to manage the
fluctuation of copper and aluminum price which
did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of the non-hedging
copper and aluminum future contracts that were
not settled as at 31 December 2008, amounting
to approximately HK$22,862,000 (Note 23(a)),
were debited to the income statement during the
year (2007: Nil).
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145,698,0007T (Z T Z £ F -
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Group
rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

20 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 20 17
(b) The Group has entered into various foreign (b)
exchange forward contracts to manage the
fluctuation of foreign currencies which did not
meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging foreign exchange
forward contracts that were not settled as at 31
December 2008, amounting to approximately
HK$7,773,000 (Note 23(a)), were debited to the
income statement during the year (2007: Nil).

Se®MIA (&)

AEBEFYZEINERT
B FEULNEIBINERE B
IEEEREE PSR -
RZEENF+ZRA=+—
HI K4 % B IEESE A+ 2 Hh
BRBANZAFEEZZHY
& #7,773,0007T (Fff 5223(a)) -
RERNERZEFNR (ZF
TLF |

21 Deferred income tax — Group 21 EZEMBH — &K
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary B REBABEEINERE
differences under the liability method using taxation BERAERETA AR ERAZHRE
rates applicable to the companies comprising the TEEE -
Group.
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities AEEZERAEMRAMBRIERER A
during the year, without taking into consideration the WIHERA EEHIBEEERBE
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, RERNZEBOT -
is as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities to be released RT-ZBARBRZEEMRSESR
within 12 months: =

Undistributed profits of
PRC subsidiaries

o I B B 22 B 2 R 20 TR A

HK$’'000
BT T
At 1 January 2007 and RZEZELtF—H—BEZ
31 December 2007 TZELF
+=—A=+—8 —
Charged to consolidated income RixE WZE R AN
statement 6,305
At 31 December 2008 RZEZENF
+-A=+—~ 6,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
mEMBEHmRMmE (F)

21 Deferred income tax — Group (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered

21 EEFREH—AEE (&)
Rt =-@ARWE ZIEEFRE

within 12 months: BE
Impairment Fair value
losses losses Total
BEEE QAFEEE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2007 and R-_TEE+F—H—H
31 December 2007 N _TEEF
+=—A=+—8 — — _
Credited to consolidated income :t A&Z &R
statement 3,598 4,289 7,887
At 31 December 2008 RZEZENF
+=—A=+—H 3,598 4,289 7,887

22 Provision for warranty

The movement of warranty provision was analysed as

follows:

2 EmRERE
EQREREZEHHOMMOT

Beginning of the year

Charge for the year (Note 24)

Exchange difference

Less: Amounts utilised

Less: Disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 34(a))

F ¥

FEAE (5E24)

EHER

B B BB KIA
e E B AR

(B 7£34(a))

End of the year

F R

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
73,003 36,304
38,129 57,939
3,014 3,894
(4,202) (25,134)
(109,944) —
73,0083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

ReEUBHRRME (F

22 Provision for warranty (Continued)
The Group’s discontinued operations provide free

repair and replacement services ranging from one year
to three years after sales. The cost of the warranty
obligation under which the Group’s discontinued
operations agree to remedy defects in its products is
accrued at the time the related sales are recognised.

23

Other (losses)/gains — net

(@) From continuing operations

2 EmRERE (E)
AEBEZERIEEEXEBREES
BRE-FE=ZF22BHER
FREMHRE AKREDRILEEE
XBREREMREBMEHR 2K
BERERA  REMHEEERR

i

23 Ht (B1E) hE

HE

(a) REBELEEK

2008
S Lt
HK$’000
BT T

Government grants (i)
Derivative financial instruments
— fair value losses on
commodity future contracts
(Note 20)
— fair value losses on foreign
exchange forward contracts
(Note 20)
Realised loss on commodity
future contracts (iv)

Realised gain on foreign
exchange forward
contracts (ii)

Exchange loss

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Penalty income

Others

IR 468 B ()
TEETRMT A

—EmBEEY

NFEEE
(B 5£20)

—IMNEERHE L

NEEERE
(Bt 5¥20)

BEERZBARBE

A KB
E#5 2 SME R
& 49 Y 25 (i)

BE 3 &5 18

HEME - BE &
RiBER

2 A

H Al

(22,862)

(7,773)

(35,957)

25,770
(44,807)

(2,907)
2,423
4,338

(80,362)

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
BETT
Restated
B3

801

(1,093)
2,149
4,430

6,287
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e M BmRME (F)

23 Other (losses)/gains — net (Continued)

From discontinued operations

23

Gain on sales of scrap

materials

Rental income — net
Government grants (i)
Fair value gain/(loss) on
investment properties

(Note 8)

Waiver of bank loan and

interest payable (jii)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Others

& BE R e

el A — F58

X T 78 B ()

KEMENTFE
Wz, (E18)
(KI7E8)

HREBITERK
JE AF 1) 2. (i)

HEWE BEKR
RS

HAb
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Hip (B8) WE — F8
(%)

(b) RECOKRIEEEEK

2008 2007
—EENF —EFTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Restated
57

9,616
3,625
3,434
(1,751)

14,764

(8,206)
(1,740

19,742




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHRRMEE (8)
23 Other (losses)/gains — net (Continued) 23 Hfth (F518) W= — FE
(%)
(b) From discontinued operations (Continued) (b) RECKRIELEEK (EF)
()  The amount represents the subsidy granted () BHESBEUKIFEE

(i)

by and received from local government
authorities in the PRC for encouragement of
export.

The Group entered into various foreign
exchange forward contracts to manage the
fluctuation of foreign currencies which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
Realised gain on foreign exchange forward
contracts amounted to HK$25,770,000.

The balance represented a waiver of bank
loan and interest payable to a financial
institution of PRC in favour of China

(i)

b BT 1 B 2 2 B )
UL Z MR

NEBERZZIBINE
tHﬁA # o FE LB E SN

ERE BETFEER
{’E;T/EPE.JFEIE B &
RZINEERBHEGH KR
/5 78 25 770,0007T ©

ERERETE—HE
BMEBERE-HERE
MeaRTBESERER

Refrigeration Industry Co., Ltd., according *ﬂ_ RARIER 2R1TE
to a loan restructuring contract. AR RN EE R o
(v) The Group entered into various copper and vy AEEZFTZZIENAR

aluminum future contracts to manage the
fluctuation of commodity price which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.
Realised loss on commodity future contracts
represented the loss relating to the copper
and aluminum future contracts settled
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

mHEAHN BUERE
BmERKE BELF

BEREHPEFE
B-pERAZEMYPE
AHBBREEEE T
ENF+T-_A=+—8H
mira%xzm&ﬁ
HEANBEBZER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e MBEmRME (F

24 Expenses by nature 24
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and

marketing costs, administrative expenses and other
operating expenses are analysed as follows:

(@) From continuing operations

Cost of inventories recognised 32 4% ~ 175 5k 4 (Fft

as expense (Note 11) 5F11)

Employee benefit expenses & 8 & |5 &2
(Note 25) (P 3%25)

Depreciation (Note 7) e (M7

Professional fee and printing H:ZIBEX FEB 2 HER
cost related to the %8 A &R A
Transaction

(Reversal)/provision for B 5 KEAMEWFZURE (8
impairment of trade and |) /B
other receivables

Provision/(reversal) for FEKERERERERE
inventory obsolescence S (#&m)

Operating leases rental for THREBFEEHERS
land and buildings

Auditors’ remuneration % S B0 B &
Research and development i 7% R R B B A
costs
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BHEEIE2AX
BREHEEMMA  HERMS
HERACA « 17 IR R S R B 48 & 5
XAZAEZDFMT

() XREFACEER

2008 2007
—BEBNE —EELF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BETT BETT
Restated

Ex]l

4,451,476 3,919,814
347,444 251,314
54,909 48,629
53,983

(3,880) 1,593
269 (697)

2,362 2,011
4,687 6,360
3,458 2,098




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHRRME (F)
24 Expenses by nature (Continued) 24 BFHEIEHEX (])
(b) From discontinued operations (b) RECKRIEREEK
2008 2007
—ZBENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Restated
Rl
Cost of inventories recognised 32 A48 x ~ 1755k 4~ (it
as expense (Note 11) F11) 1,205,061 3,184,214
Employee benefit expenses & & & |5 &2
(Note 25) (BMf3E25) 27,113 133,978
Depreciation (Note 7) e (MsE7) 15,011 64,486
Provision for warranty EmRERE
(Note 22) (M 5E22) 38,129 57,939
Provision for impairment of B 5 N E Uk
trade and other receivables BB B 12,778 33,832
Provision for inventory GFEBKERE R EGRE
obsolescence 151 26,421
Operating leases rental for T REFZ
land and buildings KEHENRS 2,788 11,372
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR BN & 9 430
Provision for impairment Y% - BB R ERE
charge of property, plant > B (B aE7)
and equipment (Note 7) 1,241
Research and development Tt 9% & B B AR AR
costs 1,025
Amortisation of intangible EmEEEE
assets (Note 9) (MF3E9) 84
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
S A = =
SO BB HE N (8)
25 Employee benefit expenses 25 EERAMEX
(a) From continuing operations (@) REFELCEEKE
2008 2007
—EE2N\F —FTETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
=5
Wages and salaries TERE® 259,692 195,924
Termination benefits #1E AR 75 18 7 2,502 —
Pension costs (i) RIKE () 24,213 10,915
Medical benefits BERT 14,827 7,376
Share options granted to RTYEEREBEZ
directors and employees B AR (B3 16(0))
(Note 16(b)) = 3,453
Other allowances and benefits H 4th 32 B & %8 F| 46,210 33,646
347,444 251,314
(b) From discontinued operations (b) REBKRILLE%K
2008 2007
—EENF —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
=5
Wages and salaries IEEHS 121,050
Pension costs (i) RIKE() 12,239
Medical benefits BERT 382
Other allowances and benefits H b 32 85 & & 7| 307
133,978
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRRME ()

25 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(0

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the MPF Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the group
companies (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Legislation. The contributions from
each of the employers and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC participate in the local retirement
schemes of the PRC. Pursuant to the
relevant regulations, the Group is currently
required to make a monthly contribution
equivalent to 15% to 28% of the monthly
salaries in respect of its full-time and
temporary employees.

25 BEERMEAX (&)

M

AEBECLHERTSE
B2MaEesta R
BalEestE SEE
TEBEAR (EBEX)RE
EBAZRGFIMAESR
EOIHRTE - SABES
A B Z5%1E /& &t &l f#
X EEREESBEZ
HRERAE ABE
1,000t HigH R BEFE
R o

PAN/NES] D sl v |
BARH2EP B A
BAREFE-RIBEE
ROl ANEERESA
T AR E R 2B RS
B B A $15%=228%2
Ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
mEMBEHmRMmE (F)

25 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c) Directors’ and senior managements’

25 EE/AMMAX (A)

() EEREREEAENS

emoluments
The remuneration of the directors for the year BERNEHE-_ZEZTN\FE+=
ended 31 December 2008 is set out below: A=+ BIFE2HM&H
e
Employer’s Compensation
contribution for loss of
Discretionary Inducement Other  to pension office as
Name of Director EERF Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits (i) scheme director Total
BiResa EZER
e 2 BB NEME HeRAN) ZEIHX ZHE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR BETT  BETr BT BETn BETT  BETR
Executive Directors #{TE%
Mr. Jiang Deqing (i) %% 5 (i) - 455 765 - - 8 - 1,228
Mr. Qu Fei (i) BRI - 354 540 - - 8 - 902
Mr. Gao Fazhong (i) 5% & % i) - 354 540 - - 8 - 902
Ms. Yuan Liqun (iv) RABZ LW - - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei ZEERE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang (i) B8 Fz % A i) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Wu Zhigiang (v) REBEEWY - 472 1,498 - - 4 - 1,974
Mr. Fang Hongbo (vi) 75 36 % A (vi) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Quan (vi) R4 % £ (i) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Donglai (vi) FRREEW) - - - - - - - -
Non-executive FHTES
Directors
Mr. Cai Qiwu (i) EER KA — — - - — — — —
Ms. Tan Xuemei (vi)  EE 1§ % £ (il - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xinhua (viii) 5 ¥7 % 5¢ 4 (vii) - - - - - - - -
Independent BUFHTER
non-executive
Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Dune B4 %4 180 - - - - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung ~ #ERE %4 180 - - - - - - 180
Ms. Chen Chunhua  BREELZ L 180 - - - - - - 180
540 1635 3,343 - - 8 - 5,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
TREMBHRRHE (F)

25 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c) Directors’ and senior managements’
emoluments (Continued)
The remuneration of the directors for the year

25 BEERMEAX (&)

(c)

EEREREBEAEME

(%)
EENBE_ZTTLF+Z

ended 31 December 2007 is set out below: A=Z+—BULHEFEZ2HMe#H
R
Employer’s Compensation
contribution for loss of
Discretionary Inducement Other to pension office as
Name of Director BEENE Fees Salary bonuses fees benefits (i) scheme director Total
Bikestal EERB
ne ¥e WL mEME HHREN) ZEZHXR ZHE A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR BT  BETRT EETn EETT BETT  BETRT
Executive Directors YTEE
Mr. Qu Fei (i) B - 225 466 - - 7 - 698
Mr. Gao Fazhong (il AR L A ) - 215 410 - - 7 - 632
Ms. Yuan Liqun (i) RABZ L - - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei ZRERE - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang (i) #5185 5% 4 (i) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Wu Zhigiang (v) REBEEW - 648 2,575 - - 7 - 3,230
Mr. Fang Hongbo (vi) F kR W) — - — — - — - -
Mr. Zhang Quan (vi) SR 5 (V) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Donglai (vi RGN - - - - - - - -
Non-executive FHUTES
Directors
Mr. Cai Qiwu (i) BHR () - - - - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Xinhua (vii) 3% 37 2 5 A (vii) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Yuhang (ix) BRF ML £ () - - - - - - - -
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Dune s 180 - - - 727 - - 907
Mr. Lam Ming Yung WHRBLEE 180 - — — 727 - - 907
Ms. Chen Chunhua RETELZT 180 - - - 727 — — 907
540 1,088 3,451 - 2,181 21 — 7,281
()  Other benefits include leave pay, share ) HmEMeEsHE
based payments and insurance premium. Hi - ARG X it 2 i &%
RE o
(i)  Directors appointed on 31 March 2008. i) BEER-_ZZENF=H

=+T—HREZEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

25 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c) Directors’ and senior managements’
emoluments (Continued)
(i) Mr. Jiang Deging was appointed on 31
August 2008.

(iv)  Ms. Yuan Ligun, who was a non-executive
Director, was redesignated as an executive
Director on 4 January 2007.

(v)  Mr. Wu Zhigiang was appointed on 31

March 2008 and resigned on 31 August
2008.

(viy  Directors resigned on 31 March 2008.

(vi) Ms. Tan Xuemei was appointed on 17
December 2008.

(viii) Mr. Zhang Xinhua resigned on 17 December
2008.

(iX)  Mr. Chen Yuhang resigned on 30 July 2007.
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25 EERAMMAX (A)

ESRESREEANENE

(&)

(iii)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

()

EZRBEENR_ZTEN
FNA=Z+—BEZ
£

FMITESTRAB 2L
ERZETEF— AN

BHREESRITES-
REBEER_FTZN
FZA=+T—HEZ
EF-AR_FZENFEN
A=1+—H#HE-
EER_TTN\FE=A
=t+—H#E-

RMEAER_-_FTTN
FT-A+EABE-

RFEMEER —_TZTL
FEA=1tHBE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
FREMBHMERME (E

25 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(d)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include four
(2007: one) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2007:
four) individuals during the year are as follows:

25

EXFHE  BERER
H A2 RE K B A a8

Basic salaries, housing
allowances, other allowances
and benefits in kind

Contribution to pension
schemes

BRE 58K

EBERAMX (F)

(d)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands

B < 48 Bl

Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,000 —
HK$2,000,000

T — 7 1,000,0007T
75 1,000,000 — 74 K&
2,000,0007T

TIEEEHFMAL
AEEEERNAA TS 5 M
ATBEOE (ZEE L5
—R)EEF Hileced8R L
XoffTe RFEERENBT —
H(ZEZTEF WH)ATL
ZMET

2007
—EELF
HK$'000
BT
Restated
EX]]

2008
—BENE
HK$’000
BET T

4,879

69

4,948

B @A MR 2 ABINT

Number of individuals

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEmRMmE (F)

26 Finance (costs)/income — net

(@) From continuing operations

26 BE (KEX) WA —FHE
Q) FREBEELEHK

2008
—EBEN\F
HK$’000
BT T

(42,461)

5,352

Interest expense FERAEZ

Exchange gain/(loss) — net  [E H Uiz (E518)
—F5

Finance cost A& B A

(37,109)

Finance income — interest
income on short-term bank
deposit

Interest income from related

MEWA —EHRT
TERZF B A

KA R T Z A B HA

parties (Note 35(b)) (Bf$7¥35(0) )
Finance income BERKA 8,240
Net finance (costs)/income BE (KAR) WA FEE (28,869)
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2007
—ETLF
HK$'000
BT T
Restated
57

(26,028)

(3,532)

(29,560)

15,546

20,179

35,725

6,165




From discontinued operations

Interest expense

Interest expense to related
parties (Note 35 (b))

Exchange loss — net

MBRX

A BB 05 S 2

A B R (K #E35(0))
PE 3 518 — FH

Finance cost

Finance income — interest
income on short-term bank

deposit

BB KA
BERA —EHRTT
T3z B BA

Net finance cost

BB KA FE R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

26 Finance (costs)/income — net (Continued) 26

mE (RA) WA — FE

(%)

(b) RECOKRIEEEER

2008
= 2%
HK$’000
BT T

(8,420)

(5,158)

(13,578)

2,150

(11,428)

mEnREEAE 199

2007
—EFT+F
HK$’000
BT
Restated
ERdl

(28,260)

(1,314)
(19,960)

(49,534)

10,263

(39,271)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e MBEmRMEE (E

27 Income tax expense
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group did not have any assessable profit in Hong
Kong. PRC corporate income tax has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the

27 FREHEAX
HRAREEREE L EEMER
BAE - LI BT IR E AN EHR
Bl PEEEMEHRIREANE
B2 fhat ERT A B 1% % R #

rates of taxation prevailing in the respective B Z7IRTHREE o
jurisdictions.
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
=gl
Income tax from continuing REFELEER
operations: ZETER
Current tax BB 5 18
— PRC corporate income tax — B EMER 24,841
Deferred tax EEBIE
— Deferred tax assets recognised — B #E:Z IR IER TH & B
(Note 21) (MF5E21) (7,887) —
— Deferred tax liabilities —EDHRELEHEERE
recognised (Note 21) (Mf7E21) 6,305 —
(1,582) —
Income tax expense REY 28,810 24,841
Income tax from discontinued RE BRI EETK
operations: 2B
Current tax Bl EAF% 18
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMRER 5,516
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e BHmRME ()

27 Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

entities as follows:

27

Profit before taxation

0 BR % 3 A1)

Calculated at the PRC statutory
tax rate of 25% (2007: 33%)

2270 5 02 o SR 05% £

(ZZEZT+4:33%)

Effect of different tax rates TRABR 2

Effect of preferential tax rates BEUR I ZE

Unrecognised tax losses RiERIAE B

Expenses not deductible for AR 2 F 2
taxation purposes

Income tax expense FriSfiMx

Representing K&

Income tax expenses from
continuing operations

Income tax expenses from
discontinued operations

KEFBEREEBZMER

F 32

REERIEEERB 2B

P

Fris®ifx (&)

AEEMBRBAMBZHERER
RERMNBER 2 MEFHHRE
PRt B2 EmMB e ZRMT

2008
= 1Y%
HK$’000
BT T

225,614

56,404

(28,075)

1,106

29,435

2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
B TT
Restated
£

247,242

81,590
(13,526)
(53,608)

328

15,573

30,357

24,841

5,616

30,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

27

28

Income tax expense (Continued)
PRC corporate income tax is provided for on 25% (31

December 2007: 33%) of the profits for the PRC
statutory financial reporting purpose, adjusted for
those items, which are not assessable or deductible
for the PRC enterprise income tax purpose.

Profits tax for other locations has not been provided
as the Group did not have any assessable profits in
those locations.

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders
of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company is dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company to the extent of approximately
HK$1,222,770,000 (2007: loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company approximately
HK$66,857,000).
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27

28

Frie®ip s (&)

o B 1 % AT 1S B 0 R o B A E B
BE2E®mMNE25%(—FFTLF
+=ZA=+ —H:33%)HE ¥
EHTARPEACLREHE M
BRAMAZ ZEEEELAE
% T LA -

Pl B 7 £ B0 50 2 4t b B4 3 4 T
FESRBRI R - 4L R R RS b
B > (5 BB o

AArlRERSEE ABERNE
(B 8)
FFARRE B HRER AR TR
BEABAEBEGLGANBLNABE
1,222,770,000c (Z T T £ F : K
NEREFEBEABEEBEENAB
#66,857,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
FREMBHmEKRME (F)
29 Earnings per share 29 BRER
(a) Basic (@ EF
Basic earnings per share are calculated by BREARRBANTIIZRFENE
dividing the profit for the year by the weighted MIAFARDZETE B 2 M
average number of ordinary shares in issue EEHEETE -

during the year.

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Restated
Exdl
Continuing operations BEREXEK
Profit for the year from continuing 7R A TIRIERE B A EIHIFE R
operations attributable to equity BERFEERNE (GEET
owners of the Company (HK$'000) 7T ) 163,604 207,268
Weighted average number of RETEEREARAF 2 L BR
ordinary shares for the purposes I8 (FR)
of basic earnings per share ('000
shares) 13,479,314 13,478,355
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) & J&EARZF| &) 1.21 1.54
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued 7K TIRRHEIE B A FE1H B 4 1F
operations attributable to equity sk s FEFE (BT
owners of the Company (HK$'000) 7t ) 17,117
Weighted average number of RETEEREART 2 L BR
ordinary shares for the purposes I (FR)
of basic earnings per share ('000
shares) 13,479,314 13,478,355
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) & RERZF GEIl) 0.25 0.12
Profit for the year attributable to KRB REZ A AEAGFEF
equity owners of the Company B BT T)
(HK$’000) 196,877 224,385
Weighted average number of MR ETREABN 2 EBK
ordinary shares for the purposes hniEFEHE (FRR)
of basic earnings per share (‘000
shares) 13,479,314 13,478,355
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) ®RRERZEF (GBIl) 1.46 1.66
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

29 Earnings per share (Continued)

(@) Basic (Continued)

On 31 March 2008, 8,753,323,092 shares were
allotted and issued to the Vendor as
consideration shares upon the completion of the
Transaction (Note 1 and Note 16), the ordinary
shares issued as part of the Transaction are
presented as if it had always been issued using
the principles of merger accounting as prescribed
in HKAG 5.

(b) Diluted
For the year ended 31 December 2007 and 31
December 2008, potential dilutive ordinary shares
are not included in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive.
Therefore, the basic and diluted earnings per
share in 2008 and 2007 are the same.

30 Dividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a

final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008
(2007: Nil).
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20 BREFN (&)

(a)

(b)

B (&)
RZEENF=ZRA=+—H"
HRBEXSEKE BERAE
77 fid 3% % #%778,753,323,0920%
R EAERER D (MFE1R
MizE16) e ZIBR 5P #EITZ
TRl TR BE B EstIESIE$5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

mEMBHRERME ()

31 Notes to the consolidated cash flow 31
statements

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash
generated from operations:

RERTRERWE

() REFBRKEELZRE

HiRR:

2008

S Ll
HK$’000

BT

Profits before income tax HBR AT B8 AT A 78
— Continuing operations —RBELEER 192.414
— Discontinued operations —BERIEEEER 33.200
225,614
Adjustments for: HE:
— Depreciation —HE
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land — FE L0 o 5 P A 6
use right
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EWEESH
— Impairment of property, plant and — ¥ BELRERE
equipment 92
— Fair value (gain)/loss on investment —REMERATE W)
properties /BB (2,198)
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and —HEYE BELBEEIRE
equipment 3,091
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — HEKBARRE -
— Fair value losses on financial instruments —4MIBAFEER 30,635
— Share-based payment expenses —UBEHOI N HAY

Waiver of bank loan and interest payable

—HRERITERRERNFE

(1,413)
(10,390)

50,881
(31,778)

211,580
(981,619)
218,107

33,927
(192,626)

511,100

— Government grants — BUTFERS

— Interest income — F BB A

— Interest expense —FERX

— Effect on exchange translation —INEERTE
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:

— Inventories —FE

— Due from related companies — R B N B B

— Trade and other receivables —EF RE T

— Provision for warranty —ERRERE

— Due to related companies — E BB A R FOB

— Trade and other payables — B REMERNR
Cash generated from operations REEEZRG

137,696
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2007

ZTTLF

HK$'000
AT T
Restated

EX]

232,109
15,133

247,242

113,115

2,981
84

1,241
1,751

9,299
(12,086)
3,453
(14,764)
(4,235)
(45,988)

55,602
(67,358)

(44,968)
(784,505)
(198,108)

32,805
680,485

291,279

267,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

mEMBHRRME (F)

31 Notes to the consolidated cash flow 3N SKERERERMET (E)
statements (Continued)

(b) In the consolidated cash flow statement, (b) RGZEHELSRERTD HE
proceeds from sale of property, plant and ME -BERRXEBABRE
equipment comprise: g2

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Restated

]l

Net book value disposed (Note 7) H & 7 BRE FE (MT:%7) 24,799 64,773
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BE M

plant and equipment (Note 23) HEEE (M FE23) (3,091) (9,299)

Disposal proceeds receivable B FCIE FE UK — (19,065)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BEK

property, plant and equipment RS IA 36,409

32 Contingent liabilities 32 HAREE

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group and RZEZENFR_ZEZTLF+=

the Company did not have any material contingent A=+—8 XEBERAQFILE

liabilities. EABEBRKAEE -

206 Weling Holding Limited

Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEHRRME (F)
33 Commitments 33 &L
(a) Capital commitments (a) EBEAXRKIE
Group
KEH
2008 2007
sz 5 ST
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
Edl
Contracted but not provided B &] #4918 7 % &
for
— purchases of property, —BEYE BELRE
plant and equipment 87,455 129,092
— investments in associates — Bt QA FIEE
(Note 12(g)) (M 3E12()) 119,718 —
207,173 129,092
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e MBEmRMEE (E

33 Commitments (Continued) 33 &iE (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as
the lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

Not later than one year BB —F

Later than one year and not BB —FEETBBAE
later than five years

(b) REHERE —KEEES
AHEA
BBz K&EEEM
R RERN 2 KT & IB
mEms

Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
=5
13,926
782
14,708

34 Discontinued operations 34 BRIEREXEK

On 31 March 2008, the Group disposed of all of its
equity interest in the Disposed Companies to the
Vendor (Note 1). The operating gain of the Disposed
Group for the year ended 31 December 2007
amounted to approximately HK$11,856,000 has been
included in the profit from discontinued operations of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.
The operating gain for the three months ended 31
March 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$32,575,000 has been included in the profit from
discontinued operations of the Group for the vyear
ended 31 December 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
2 A > =]
%nﬂﬂi%iﬁ%mqﬁ (II\E
34 Discontinued operations (Continued) 34 CRIEKEERK (H)
The results and cash flows for the discontinued ERIEEEEB2XERRER
operations were as follows: =N
2008 2007
S DMES — TR A
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
o= BTt LR
Restated
E]l
Discontinued operations: DRIEREER:
Revenue Wz 5 el 3,688,456
Representing: (A
— Revenue from the Disposed Group — KRB HEEE
I &= el 3,589,686
— Revenue from Qingjiang — kBB I ZWE — 98,770 |
Cost of goods sold HEEMmK AR i)l (3,392,838)
Gross profit EF 131,305 295,618
Other gains — net Hlhss — 558 23 10,470 19,742
Selling and marketing costs tHE RIS HEEKAN Erack)) (183,812)
Administrative expenses TR X (39,403) (73,974)
Other operating expenses Hh e (274) (3,170)
Operating profits &K s 44,628 54,404
Finance costs LR = YN 26 (13,578) (49,534)
Finance income A WA 26 2,150 10,263
Finance costs — net BB AN — F 58 26 (11,428) (39,271)
Profits before income tax 1 B& BT 18 B¢ A0 AU 8 33,200 15,133
Income tax expense TS EZ 27 (625) (5,516)
Profit after income tax HNEBFREHREZFE 32,575 9,617
Representing: KK :
— Profit after income tax from the —RBEELEEEZ
Disposed Group MR AT B 18 F)E 11,856
— Loss after income tax from —REBEIZHG
Qingjiang PGB (2,239)
Gain on disposal of Qingjiang HEE TR (b) 12,086
Profit for the year from ERIEREEK 2
discontinued operations FERH 21,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

34 Discontinued operations (Continued)

Discontinued operations:
Net cash inflow from operating

ERIEEEER:
RERH2RERAFHE

activities

Net cash used in investing KEZHIAZIRES F5
activities

Net cash (used in)/generated WMEES (TR EEZ
from financing activities e F5E

Total cash inflows HERABE
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2008
= 2%
HK$°000
BT T

159,444

(57,089)

(9,265)

93,090

34 CRILEEEER (&)

2007
—EFTLF
HK$’000
BT T
Restated
57

128,229
(125,427)

25,687

28,489




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e BHmRME ()

34 Discontinued operations (Continued)

)

The deemed contribution arising from the (@
Transaction credited to merger reserve and net
cash outflow on disposal of the Disposed Group
December 2008 was

for the year ended 31
determined as follows:

34 CRLEEEER (&)

ZERGELEZBIFERD
AAARHREME MEEE D
EEEBRE_TTN\F+
A=Zt - BLEFEZRER
R TIIEAEE

HK$’000
BT T

Leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6)
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7)
Investment properties (Note 8)

Other non-current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Inventories

Due from related companies

Trade and other receivables

Pledged bank deposit

Trade and other payables

Income tax liabilities

Due to related parties

Due to the Company

Provision for warranty (Note 22)

Borrowings

Less: minority interests disposed of

Less: statutory reserves released (Note 17(a))

THE L & L5 A& (BT 5E6) 104,125

W BB RS (M) 418,503
‘B (K 3E8) 113,893
HithEmBEE 73
RERBRCEED 245,096
rE 417,478
JE W BA B A B FRIE 1,172,721
B 5 I H i FE UK 673,063
BB RITHER 171,441
B 5 M H A FET 5K (2,116,244)
FEsiaE (:300)}
JE 1< BA Bk 75 SR IE (967,399)
FET AR R RIE (876,124)
EoREES (M22) (109,944)
R (401,970)

W BHE S HRRER
B BB A E A (M EE17()

(55,232)
(48,137)

Net liabilities disposed of
Net debt receivable assigned to the Vendor (Note 1)

Deemed contribution arising from the Transaction credited

EHEEETFE

MBS EE EREEFE
(M)

ZEXRGELZBEEBMET AL

(1,259,467)

876,124

to merger reserve (Note 17(d)) BHEERE (M sE17(d)) 404,351
Exchange difference EHEZE (21,008)
Cash proceeds WEFEHIE =

Less: cash and cash equivalent disposed of

BEBHERSRRESEED (245,096)

Net cash outflow

BeRb F8E (245,096)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
2 A = =
e BEHmRMHEE (BF)
34 Discontinued operations (Continued) 34 CRIEREEK ()
(o) The gain and net cash inflow on disposal of by HEBFBIKENBAREHZ
Qingjiang and its subsidiary for the year ended —E2FE+FE+-_HA=+—H
31 December 2007 was determined as follows: FFEZRERBESREAF
BWIOETIIEBERE -
HK$’000
ST T
Leasehold land and land use rights THE i & £ b (F AR
(Note 6) (Bt &E6) 40,628
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) M- WEKREE (BE7) 132,971
Intangible assets (Note 9) mREE (:F9) 29
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 3,237
Inventories FE 75,027
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H Ath fE IR 223,765
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIE R 49,141
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFEEY 17,275
Borrowings f& 3 (143,614)
Trade and other payables g 5 K H Ath A 3K (362,381)
36,078
Less: minority interest disposed of B EHE R EER (8,266)
Net assets disposed of BELEEEFE 27,812
Gain on disposal & = 12,086
Cash consideration HWeERE 39,898
Less: cash and cash equivalent disposed of Jfi: EHER SRR S Z(E
L)l (17,275)
Net cash inflow on disposal HERSRANFEHE 22,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
e BmKRME (F)

35 Related party transactions
Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements, the material related party
transactions are as follows:

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

35 MBI
REAGRAMBHMREMMK R
BEN BEAEBOIXIZFET
T

() BBLTZEBEEE

Name

Chongaging Midea General

Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd.

Foshan Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.

Foshan City Wellkey Electric Material

Co., Ltd.

Foshan Huiao Investment Co., Ltd.

Foshan Midea Domestic Electric Co.,

Ltd.

Foshan Midea Domestic Electric
Investment Co., Ltd.

Foshan Midea Kitchenware Appliance

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Foshan Midea Material Supplying Co.,

Ltd.
Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave

Electrical Appliances Manufacturing

Co., Ltd.
Foshan Shunde Midea Washing

Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Foshan Witol Highway Maintenance

Equipment Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Meizhi Compressor Co.,

Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Commercial
Air-conditioning Equipment Co.,
Ltd.

GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Environment

Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Relationship

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a close family
member of the ultimate holding
company’s substantial
shareholder

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

=g

ERZNABRBRSRE
BRAA

LT R SR
BRAA

(G m&z% ITH#
BRA

BILTERREBRAR

%Mm%m% ESES
BRA

BLUTENRERE
BRAA

BT E B B fE
BRAA

LM MM ERHEER
NC]

B 1L T IR AR R 5K RO
EREARAT

Bl TR R EMERE
BRRIEBR AT

BRI TRV QB8 B R
BRAA

ERECHLAREER
NS

BRENEAEFARE
BRAA]

BRENEERNDAER
/\ﬂ

%%E’Jﬁa RERRE
BRA

B %

A R AR B X B

A R AR R AR X B

HERERAREE
P BR 2 3 RR P )

HSRERARZE
B R I

HERAERARZE
2 PRSI

P B AR PR B 2 B

HERERARZE
E R E S

A AR AR PR B 2 B

HSERERARZE
RHX%?I
A S AR PR A AR

HERAERARZE
2 RS

P B AR PR B 2 B

A R AR B X B

A AR AR PR B X B

B B AR AR B R B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

e MBHRRME ()

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

(Continued)

Name

Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu
Air-conditioning Equipment Co.,
Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Microwave Oven

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Refrigeration
Appliances Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Witol Vacuum Electronic

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Hualing Air-conditioning &

Equipment Co., Ltd.
Hefei Hualing Co., Ltd.

Hefei Rongshida Midea Electrical
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.

Hefei Rongshida Refrigerator Co., Ltd.

Hefei Rongshida Washing Equipment

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Qingjiang Motor Manufacturing

Co., Ltd.

Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Midea Science and Technology

Co., Ltd.

Wuxi Little Swan Company Ltd.

Relationship

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

Controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the ultimate
holding company

Controlled by the ultimate holding
company

3B BHAIXS (&)
(@) BBLTzEBEEE (E)

=L

BEREMEBERES R
wERAA

B 3R 3% O BHOR M B3
BRAT

BERENHCRE
BRRAT

ERBEFEZEFHIE
BRAA

EMEEEARE
BRAT
AREERBERAA

BREREEXNERLH
BRAR
BIERFZT KM
BRAA
BRAEERXRERE
BRRAT
LA L BB
BRAA
ENEERER SRS
BRAA
EW L BWRK,
BR AR
HORXHR AR DA

G/ DNRIEBRMBR QT

HERAERARZE
B R I

SRy N R ]

HSRERARZE
BRI

SRS 2y /NI R 2o ]

A R AR AR AR X B

A S AR PR AR AR

SRy NI E 2]

SRS 2y /NI E 2o ]

SRS 2y /NI R 2o ]

A R AR AR X B

HSERERARZE
2R

A S AR PR A AR

EERxm (RABEEMKLZA
A REREERBOR -

The Directors regard Midea, a company
incorporated in the PRC, as being the ultimate
holding company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHRRHE (F)
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 3B BEEAEXRS (&)
(b) Transaction with related parties (b) EEEB AL ETZRS
The following transactions were carried out with LTHREBESAFREZBGR
related parties in accordance with the terms HEBATET IR S

mutually agreed by the respective parties:

()  Continuing operations: 0]
2007
—ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Restated
Ed
Sales to related parties: M) B 5 SHE
Chongaing Midea General Refrigeration EFENBARNLIRE
Equipment Co., Ltd. BRAR 3,669 563
Foshan Midea Kitchenware Appliance HBIUTENEFEESRE
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BRAT 16,600 8,787
Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave Electrical BB THIEE R ER
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd. MK EREEFRAA 550,358 398,692
Foshan Shunde Midea Washing Appliances 0 L1 70 B 1 [ 25 A % R

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BREEFRAF 106,334 94,711
Foshan Witol Highway Maintenance Equipment {85 1L 1 & 45 A B S & R &

Co., Ltd. BRAT 228 —
Guangdong Midea Commercial Air-conditioning & 3R 3= /9 % A 2= 3 2% &5

Equipment Co., Ltd. BIRAR 137,231 124,619
GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. EBEREMNBRRH

BERAA 159 —

Guangdong Midea Environment Appliances EBREMNRREREE

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BRA A 3,154 4,804
Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu Air-conditioning & 3R 3 /Y & B &5 80 )%

Equipment Co., Ltd. BEHRA A 271,837 300,612
Guangdong Midea Refrigeration Appliances BRI S HRE
Co., Ltd. BRAA 486,751 529,352
Guangdong Witol Vacuum Electronic BREFETE TS

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. B AT 2 20
Guangzhou Hualing Air-conditioning & BEMNEZEFRE

Equipment Co., Ltd. BRAR 114,222 101,533
Hefei Rongshida Washing Equipment AL EERKRBERE

Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BRAF 185,696 81,350
Jiangsu Qingjiang Motor Manufacturing Co., TERS T BRI

Ltd. BHRRAFA 1,776 -
Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration Equipment — Z=#Y & B ROZ 8% 3%

Co., Ltd. BRAF 200,722 186,912
Wuhu Midea Science and Technology Co., Ltd. #E#EMRIE AR A A - 4,769
Wuxi Little Swan Company Ltd. w5/ NKIERMDBR A A] 17,870 —

2,096,609 1,836,726
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

mEMBHRME (F)

35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35

(b)

Transaction with related parties (Continued)

M

Continuing operations (Continued):

BEAXS (#)
(b) HREBRSETZXEZ (&)

() HELESERBE):

Purchases from related parties:

Foshan City Wellkey Electric Material Co.,
Ltd.

Foshan Midea Domestic Electric Co., Ltd.

Foshan Midea Material Supplying Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Qingjiang Motor Manufacturing Co.,
Ltd.

Receives logistics services from related
parties:

Foshan Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Annto Logistics Co., Ltd.

Purchase of land use right and factory
premises from related parties:

Foshan Huiao Investment Co., Ltd.

Interest income from related parties:
Midea

2008 2007
S IIEN -—TTLA
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Restated
E]
) BA B 5 RS
LT EEFEIME
BRAR 29,707 102,368
BILTTENKAES
BRAR 820,049 2,023,823
1L T S M R R
BRAT 3,193 2,515
T T B RS
BRAR 39 1,963
852,988 2,130,669
w) BA B 5 BEER W AR 7
BILTLEMRERQA —
HRLBYRRDER AT -
B BARE BB + b AE R
BV ES
BILTERKRERRAR _
REBE T ZFBUA -
¥ 20,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHRRHE (8)
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35 BEEBERS (&)
(b) Transaction with related parties (Continued) (b) EEBEBAETZRS (&)

(i

Discontinued operations:

iy BRIEEEER:

2008 2007
—z2 )¢ BEEIR
HK$’000 HK$’000
L EE N BT

Sales to related parties:

Guangdong Midea Commercial Air-
conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu
Air-conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Midea Refrigeration
Appliances Co., Ltd.

Hefei Rongshida Midea Electrical
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd.

Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration
Equipment Co., Ltd.

Restated
E]

m) A B 5 S
BREREAER
REHR QA 1,104
J& 3R 35 7 & [
LR EBRAA 759
BREMELK
R AR iyl 1,280,802
AL EEENTR
ZIHARAA 36,513 188,990
ENEERERR
HEAR QA 749

delirder 1,472,404
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
2= A = =
REMBwRME (8)
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35 BEEBERS ()
(b) Transaction with related parties (Continued) (b) EERBLETZIXSZ (&)
(i)  Discontinued operations (Continued): (i) BRELEXERE):
2008 2007
it JIE: W — T T - F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
ki BB T
Restated
el
Purchases from related parties: ) BE B 5 BR AR -
Foshan Midea Domestic Electric BILTEN KA ES
Co., Ltd. BRAA 51,970
Guangdong Meizhi Compressor EREZRLIEZME
Co., Ltd. BRAA 286,738
Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu EREMSEEHEHR
Air-conditioning Equipment Co., REBEABR AR
Ltd. 267
Guangdong Midea Refrigeration BREMNRLRE
Appliances Co., Ltd. BR QA 135,356 203,411
Hefei Rongshida Refrigerator Co., BIEREEE KM
Ltd. BRAA 24,828 —
Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration ENEERER SR
Equipment Co., Ltd. HwWER QA 47,091 9,234
276,991 551,620
Interest expenses to related parties:  [A] BEEE 5 X~ 2 5 &
i
Midea EH 1,314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHRRHE (8)
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35 BEBAIRS (&)
(c) Key management compensation c) FEEBAEMS
Group
NEME

2008 2007
ZEEN\F mEhas
HKS'000 JEETE000
himi| BB T T

Restated

gl

Salaries and other employee benefits % 4 & H #b (& 8 & F| 11,942
Share-based payments LARR 9 324+ 2 3,453
15,395
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBEmRMmE (F)

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Balances with related companies:

35

BEAXS (#)

(d) EBEBRTZ&ER:

Group
rE
2008 2007
ZEE)N\F it
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B R
Restated
=7
Due from related companies: JE U B Bk N ) O
Chongaing Midea General BEEEXMBARYLEE
Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd. BRAA 1,494 —
Foshan Midea Domestic Electric BILmENKAES
Co., Ltd. BRAA 120,206 149,739
Foshan Midea Kitchenware BLUTENEEERYESR
Appliance Manufacturing Co., Ltd. R A &) 11,185 6,081
Foshan Midea Material Supplying b 1L T =R R E
Co., Ltd. BRAA 466 —
Foshan Shunde Midea Microwave {85 |1 i JIE 12 [& ZE &9 UK
Electrical Appliances Manufacturing E25&iEHR A A
Co., Ltd. 234,959 201,421
Foshan Shunde Midea Washing b 1L T B 728 (@ 55 A9 %
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd. TE&EHE QT 82,966 71,352
Guangdong Midea Commercial ERENEAEARME
Air-conditioning Equipment AR AR
Co., Ltd. 38,513 47,652
GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. ERENBHRBKMD
BRAT] 341 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
FREMBHmEKRME (F)
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35 BEEBAXRS (&)
(d) Balances with related companies: (Continued) (d) EBEEBAT &tk (F)
Group
rEE
2008 2007
= LTSS TR F
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Tt L
Restated
E]l
Guangdong Midea Environment ERENBIETREE
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd. B A &) 5,094
Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu EREMNEREHRS
Air-conditioning Equipment HEBEER QA
Co., Ltd. 108,186 185,740
Guangdong Midea Refrigeration F‘%%W%é?&ﬁ
Appliances Co., Ltd. BRA 126,981 392,208
Guangdong Witol Vacuum Electronic Eﬁ?%};}ztﬁéfﬂ*%%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BRAF 6
Guangzhou Hualing Air-conditioning & /M ++/*W EEE
& Equipment Co., Ltd. BRA —
Hefei Rongshida Midea Electrical é%%%%%m%%%%ﬁ
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd. KeS/NEE] 8,450
Hefei Rongshida Washing Equipment & B4 EE R KR ERIER
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. S S/NCT 158,985 44,460
Jiangsu Qingjiang Motor /Iéiix%le iy
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BEA 2,580 1,321
Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration ~ FE#J £ ﬁ%%/q\ &1
Equipment Co., Ltd. BR QA 89,157 146,118
Wuhu Midea Science and HEMENRIEAR AR
Technology Co., Ltd. - 5,788
Wuxi Little Swan Company Ltd. 5/ N KIS 1D B R A A 17,322 -

i 1,265,430

REZRERAT 221
—EEN\EER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
mEMBHmERM T (F
35 Related party transactions (Continued) 35 BEEBAXRS (&)
(d) Balances with related companies: (Continued) (d EEEREBAR &R (&)
Group
rE
2008 2007
i L DS — BT A
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T L
Restated
E]l
Due to related companies: JE AT BA Bt B BOA -
Foshan City Wellkey Electric Material {3 L 77 & 2 & T # ¥
Co., Ltd. BRARQA] 47,005
Foshan Midea Domestic Electric FHLmENRBAES
Co., Ltd. BRAA 854,060
Foshan Midea Domestic Electric FBLTENREKRE
Investment Co., Ltd. BRAT 11
Foshan Midea Material Supplying b 1L T =R RHE R
Co., Ltd. BERAQA] 4,879
Guangdong Meizhi Compressor EREZRRRER
Co., Ltd. BRAA 202,080
Guangdong Midea Commercial ERENEAEAZE
Air-conditioning Equipment BR AR
Co., Ltd. 13,312
Guangdong Midea Environment EREMNRBEREE
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd. B A &) 2
Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu BREMNEEBEAR L
Air-conditioning Equipment B Ll SNG]
Co., Ltd. 56,624
Guangdong Midea Microwave Oven [& 5 35 /) U /B %
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. BRAF 3
Guangdong Midea Refrigeration ERENRLIK
Appliances Co., Ltd. BRAA 106,761
Hefei Rongshida Washing Equipment & E& EER KR ERIER
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. iES/NC 11,926
Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration  ZER) & B R)Z 842 B 15
Equipment Co., Ltd. AR A A 37,394

reeya 1,334,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
TREMBHRRHE (8)

35 Related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Balances with related companies: (Continued)
The balances due from/to related companies are
denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free
and are repayable on demand. No balance due
from related companies is past due or impaired.

36 Ultimate holding company
The directors regard Midea, a company incorporated

in the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company.

37 Subsequent events
On 9 January 2009, 375,000,000 share options were
granted to the Directors and certain employees of the
Group pursuant to the share option scheme (Note
16(b)) of the Company.

35

36

37

MBI XS (&)

d HEEBATZ&ERR: (F)
JE W2 & 1T B Bt X ) 4 B4 DA
AR®IE X AEER - %
BEHARERKER -HE
& i B Bt 1 B A4S #R 8 B SR
(=

RARERRA T
BEEREN (RPEEMALZA
/N

N
) AREEBERF -

HEHREE
RZZEZNF—ANLB  BEARQ
Al 2 B E 8 (M &16b)) » &
SECEERETEEERT
375,000,00017 f# A #& -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBERE

2008

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—-HLHEE

2007

—22)\F o
HK$’000 HK$'000

2006 2005 2004
ZETRF —ZTTRFE —TIEF
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT  B¥TrT  A¥Trx
Restated Restated Restated
&7 &7 L]
Unaudited  Unaudited  Unaudited
ABEZ  AEEZ  AKEXZ
(i) (i) (i)

3,192,733 2,612,940 1,871,620

58,686  (194,474)  (549,322)

5,989,771 4,732,315 3,408,277
(5,948,562) (4,802,265) (3,340,370)

BT T L
Restated
E]l
Audited Audited
TR REIZ
(i)
Results B
Turnover ] Salekberil 4,644,992
Profit/(loss) attributable to 7D BIARIEREE A
equity holders of the FEIEFIE/
Company (E18) 196,877 224,385
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BEE 3,359,872 BN TAER
Total liabilities wEE PrEENE (5,523,927)
Total equity/(deficit) Bz (Ba) 85 770,642 273,256

41,209 (69,950) 67,907

(i) The financial summary for the year ended 31 December 2007,
2006, 2005 and 2004 are restated using the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. Details refer to Note 2.1 of
the consolidated financial statements.
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